N\
2 N\
Z N\
/N

PENNS
WOODS
BANCORP, INC.

2004 Annual Report &
Form 10K



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Letter to Our Shareholders. . . ... .o 2
Three Year Financial Highlights .. ... . . i 3
Report of Independent AUditors . ... ..o i 4
Consolidated Balance Sheet. . . .. ... oo 5
Consolidated Statement of INCOMe . . ... ... 6
Consolidated Statement of Changesin Shareholders Equity . ........... ... ... ... . ... 7
Consolidated Statement of Cash FIOWS. . ... ... 8
Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementS. .. ... 9-24
Management’s Discussion and ANalySiS . . . ..ot 25-39
FOrm 20-K .. 40-52
Management and Board Of DireCtors. . . ... ..ottt 53

Officesof Jersey Shore State Bank . .. ... ..o 54-55



To Our
Shareholders

Dear Shareholder:

Each year when we start planning the annual report the same question arises, should we make this year’s annual report a little more
exciting? And, every year we decide that our shareholders want a straightforward report that explains how their investment performed
and why. During 2004, thisideawas celebrated by financial writer Nathan Parmelee when he stated, “ Penns Woods Bancorp earns kudos
for writing an annual report that clearly explains its industry.” With this said, we hope you benefit from the clear-cut, albeit reserved,
2004 Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. annual report.

2004 was ancther strong year for the company. At December 31, 2004, consolidated net income was $11,083,000 or $3.33 per diluted
and basic share. Net income, excluding security gains, increased 8.66% over 2003. This increase in core earnings maintained the
company’s strong return on average assets of 2.06% and return on shareholders equity of 15.49% for the year.

The company’s balance sheet showed positive growth during 2004. Assets increased $19,322,000 or 3.66% over 2003. Gross loans
increased $48,677,000 to $324,505,000 and deposits increased $22,518,000 to $356,836,000. Net interest income remained strong
increasing 11.08% over 2003. The growth of net interest income is primarily due to an increase in the volume of loans and a reduction
in the cost of deposits. The M Group had another strong year and added $613,000, or $0.18 per share basic and diluted, to the company’s
bottom line.

We were once again well capitalized at year end 2004. Our capital has grown $3,396,000 or 4.86% since 2003, which in turn has
increased the book value per share by 4.90% to $22.03.

Increasing shareholder value has always been a major focus for us. During 2004 the company provided cash dividends of $1.76 per share,
an 18.12% increase over the $1.49 paid per share in 2003.

During 2004, Penn Woods Bancorp, Inc. received accolades for its performance. The company was ranked #1 on the BNKelite, which
is aselect group of 12 banks that have achieved above average performance. We were also recognized by the Independent Community
Bankers of Americain their annual ranking of banks based on return on assets and return on equity.

We continue to grow in Centre County as in September 2004 we broke ground on our 4,500 square foot Centre County regiona banking
center. The facility will be operational in May 2005 and will house our regional commercial and residential mortgage lending functions,
investment and insurance services, as well as a full service branch.

Aswe move into 2005, we want you to know that our mission of enhancing shareholder value and servicing the needs of our customers

is as strong now as it was when the company first opened its doors 70 years ago.

Sincerely,

s

Ronald A~Walko
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Board of Directors and Shareholders
Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financia statements. An audit aso includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

I'n our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2004 and 2003, and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

LY Aoty AC

Wexford, Pennsylvania
February 11, 2005

S.R. Snodgrass, A.C.
1000 Stonewood Drive, Suite 200 Wexford, PA 15090~8399 Phone: 724~934~0344 Facsimile: 724~934~0345



Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet

DECEMBER 31,

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2004 2003
ASSETS:
Noninterest-bearing balances in other financial institutions. ... ................... $ 12,602 $ 10,196
Interest-bearing deposits in other financia institutions . ......................... 24 34
Total cashand cashequivalents. . ......... ... i 12,626 10,230
Investment securities, availablefor sale, at fairvalue .. ......................... 177,957 210,611
Investment securities held to maturity (fair value
Of $561 and B70L) . ...t 558 686
Loansheld for sale . ...t 4,624 4,803
Loans, net of unearned discount of $1,096 and $940. .. .. ...... ... .. ... 324,505 275,828
Less: Allowancefor [0an l0SSES .. ... .o i i 3,338 3,069
L0aNS, NMEL. oottt 321,167 272,759
Premises and equipment, NEL. . . ... .. ..ot 4,882 4,625
Accrued interest receivable. . ... ... . 2,246 2,242
Bank-owned [ifeinsurance . . ...t 10,976 8,908
GoodWIll . . 3,032 3,032
OthEr BSSEES . . . oottt 8,635 9,485
TOT AL ASSE T S . it e e e $ 546,703 $ 527,381
LIABILITIES:
Interest-bearing dePOSITS . . . ..ottt $ 282,786 $ 269,443
Noninterest-bearing deposits. . . ..o oot 74,050 64,875
TOTAL DEPOSI TS . .ot 356,836 334,318
Short-term bOrrOWINgS. . . . ..o 36,475 47,265
Long-term borrowings, Federal Home LoanBank. . ............................ 75,878 70,878
Accrued interest payable. . ... .. 850 836
Other [1abilities . .. ..o 3,499 4315
TOTAL LIABILITIES . ..o e e e e e 473,538 457,612

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY:
Common stock, par value $10; 10,000,000 shares authorized

3,331,837 and 3,326,560 sharesissued .. ...t 33,318 33,265
Additional paid-incapital ... ...... ... 17,700 17,559
Retained €arnings . . ... oottt 18,262 13,022
Accumulated other comprehensiveincome .......... ..o 4,331 6,132
Treasury stock, at cost (10,310 and 5,000 Shares) ... ...cvvviiiei i ee s (446) (209)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY ..o 73,165 69,769
TOT AL L $ 546,703 $ 527,381

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



Penns Woods Bancor p, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of |ncome

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2004 2003 2002
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME:
Loansincludingfees. .......... .o $ 21,363 % 19963 $ 20,911
Investment Securities:
Taxable . .. 7,769 6,550 4,999
TaX-BXEMPL . . ottt e 1,707 2,608 3,252
Other dividend and interest income . ..., 108 111 140
TOTAL INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME ............... 30,947 29,232 29,302
INTEREST EXPENSE:
DEDOSIES. .+t ettt e 4,775 5,656 7,857
Short-term bOrrOWINGS . . . .. ot 539 428 501
LoNg-term DOIrOWINGS . . . . oo e e 3,454 3,181 2,488
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE. . ... ..o 8,768 9,265 10,846
NET INTEREST INCOME ... ... . i 22,179 19,967 18,456
PROVISIONFORLOANLOSSES . ... .o 465 255 365
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FORLOAN LOSSES. .. it e e e 21,714 19,712 18,091
NON-INTEREST INCOME:
Servicecharges . . ..o 1,983 1,917 1,833
SeCUNtieS gains, NEL. . ... oot 2,176 3,479 35
Bank-owned lifeinsurance . .. ... 294 404 416
INSUranCe COMMISSIONS . . . . o vttt et e e e 2,282 1,598 1,807
Other iNCOMe. . . . ..o 1,214 1,056 1,164
TOTAL NON-INTEREST INCOME. .. ... 7,949 8,454 5,255
NON-INTEREST EXPENSES:
Sdlariesand employee benefits. . . ... ..o 7,937 7,262 6,944
OCCUPANCY EXPENSE, NEL . . . . ottt et et 959 877 831
Furniture and equipment eXpense. . .. ..o vt 1,016 999 837
AAVEISING EXPENSE . . .ottt 344 388 372
Pennsylvaniasharestax expense. .. ...t 508 455 411
OthEr EXPENSES oot 3,553 3,308 2,818
TOTAL NON-INTEREST EXPENSES. .........cciiiiiiiian 14,317 13,289 12,213
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX PROVISION . ........covvvn... 15,346 14,877 11,133
INCOME TAX PROVISION . . .. 4,263 3,703 2,247
NET INCOME. ..ot e e e $ 11,083 % 11,174  $ 8,886
EARNINGSPER SHARE —BASIC ... ..o $ 333 % 335 $ 2.66
EARNINGSPER SHARE —DILUTED ......coiiiiiii e $ 333 % 335 % 2.66
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING-BASIC......... $ 3325007 $ 333058 $ 3,336,312
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING-DILUTED...... $ 3328627 $ 3333798 $ 3,339,249

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.




Penns Woods Bancor p, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Changes
In Shareholders Equity

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) ACCUMULATED
ADDITIONAL OTHER TOTAL
COMMON STOCK PAID-IN RETAINED COMPREHENSIVE ~ TREASURY  SHAREHOLDERS
SHARES AMOUNT CAPITAL EARNINGS INCOME (LOSS) STOCK EQUITY
Balance, December 31, 2001 3,131,644 $ 31,316 $ 18230 $ 6,987 $ 1,729 $ (3,010) $ 552252
Comprehensive Income:
Net income 8,886 8,886
Unrealized gain on available for
sale securities, net of reclassification
adjustments and tax of $1,760 3,416 3,416
Total comprehensive income 12,302
Dividends declared, ($1.24 per share) (4,124) (4,124)
Stock options exercised 5,188 52 61 113
Purchase of treasury stock (13,449 shares) (401) (401)
Balance, December 31, 2002 3,136,832 31,368 18,291 11,749 5,145 (3411) 63,142
Stock split effected in the form
of a10% dividend 187,143 1,871 (793) (4,900) 3,822
Comprehensive Income:
Net income 11,174 11,174
Unrealized gain on available for
sale securities, net of reclassification
adjustments and tax of $508 987 987
Total comprehensive income 12,161
Dividends declared, ($1.49 per share) (5,001) (5,001)
Stock options exercised 2,585 26 61 87
Purchase of treasury stock (14,787 shares) (620) (620)
Balance, December 31, 2003 3,326,560 33,265 17,559 13,022 6,132 (209) 69,769
Comprehensive Income:
Net income 11,083 11,083
Unrealized gain on available for
sale securities, net of reclassification
adjustments and tax of $926 (1,801) (1,801)
Total comprehensive income 9,282
Dividends declared, ($1.76 per share) (5,843) (5,843)
Stock options exercised 5,277 53 141 194
Purchase of treasury stock (5,310 shares) (237) (237)
Balance, December 31, 2004 3,331,837 $ 33318 $ 17,700 $ 18,262 $ 4331 $ (446) $ 73,165
Components of comprehensive income (10ss): 2004 2003 2002
Change in net unrealized gain (l0ss)
on investment securities available for sale $ (365 $ 3,283 $ 3439
Realized gains included in net
income, net of taxes of $740, $1,183 and $12 (1,436) (2,296) (23)
Total $ (1,801) $ 987 $ 3416

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



Penns Woods Bancor p, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(In Thousands) 2004 2003 2002

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NELINCOME. . oottt et e e e $ 11,083 % 11,174 % 8,886
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation . .. ..ot 585 631 526
Provisionfor loan losses. . ... 465 255 365
Accretion and amortization of investment security
discountsand premiums .. ... (132 (194) (906)
Securitiesgains, Net .. ...t (2,176) (3,479) (35)
Originations of loansheldforsale.......................... (34,398) (15,983) (16,597)
Proceeds of loansheldforsale............ ... ... ... oot 34,577 13,831 17,939
Earnings on bank-owned lifeinsurance. . .................... (294) (404) (416)
Other, NEL. ... 482 606 (1,190)
Net cash provided by operating activities. ..................... 10,192 6,437 8,572

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment securities available for sale:

Proceedsfromsales ... ... ... 162,796 82,489 79,022
Proceeds from callsand maturities . .......................... 28,732 48,046 13,047
PUrChasES . . .. (159,295) (159,363) (130,328)
Investment securities held to maturity:
Proceeds from calls and maturities ................. ... ....... 142 520 137
PUrChasES . . ..o (14) (24) (41)
Netincreaseinloans . . ..o e (49,002) (18,390) (6,800)
Acquisition of bank premisesand equipment .. ................... (842) (400) (992)
Proceeds from the sale of foreclosed assets .. .................... 237 341 344
Purchase of bank-owned lifeinsurance. .. ....................... (1,774) - -
Proceeds from redemption of regulatory stock . ................... 3,322 1,507 1,262
Purchases of regulatory stock . ......... ... ... i (2,940) (4,402) (2,080)
Net cash used for investing activities. . ...................... (18,638) (49,676) (46,429)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase (decrease) in interest-bearing deposits.. . . ............. 13,343 (3,349) 22,914
Net increase (decrease) in noninterest-bearing deposits. .. .......... 9,175 (2,186) 11,784
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings. . ................ (10,790) 33,702 (5,542)
Proceeds from other borrowings. . ... 5,000 20,000 10,000
Repayment of other borrowings .......... ... ... it - (900) -
Dividends paid. . .. ..o ot (5,843) (5,002) (4,124)
Stock options exercised . . ... 194 87 113
Purchase of treasury stock . .. ... (237) (620) (401)
Net cash provided by financing activities . ................... 10,842 41,738 34,744
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. ... ..o 2,396 (1,501) (3,113)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING .................. 10,230 11,731 14,844
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,ENDING. .. ...t $ 12626 $ 10230 $ 11,731

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Interest paid $ 8754 % 9521 $ 10.944
Income taxes paid $ 4350 $ 3500 $ 3,394
Transfer of loans to foreclosed real estate $ 129 $ 173 $ 254

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



PENNSWOODS BANCORP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — OPERATIONSAND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Jersey
Shore State Bank (the “Bank”), Woods Real Estate Development Co., Inc., Woods Investment Company, Inc. and The M Group Inc. D/B/A The
Comprehensive Financial Group (“The M Group”), awholly owned subsidiary of the Bank (collectively, the “Company”). All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Nature of Business

The Bank engages in a full-service commercial banking business, making available to the community awide range of financial servicesincluding, but
not limited to, installment loans, credit cards, mortgage and home equity loans, lines of credit, construction financing, farm loans, community
development loans, loans to non-profit entities and local government loans and various types of time and demand deposits including, but not limited to,
checking accounts, savings accounts, clubs, money market deposit accounts, certificates of deposit and IRAs. Depositsareinsured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") to the extent provided by law.

Thefinancial services are provided by the bank to individuals, partnerships, non-profit organizations and corporations through its eleven offices |ocated
in Clinton, Lycoming, and Centre Counties, Pennsylvania and a Financial Center located in State College, Pennsylvania.

Woods Real Estate Development Co., Inc. engagesin rea estate transactions on behalf of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. and the Bank.

Woods Investment Company, Inc., a Delaware holding company, is engaged in investing activities.

The M Group engages in securities brokerage and insurance activities.

Operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on a corporate-wide basis. Accordingly, all financia services operations are considered
by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financia statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financia statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, deferred tax assets
and liabilities, and the valuation of rea estate acquired through, or in lieu of, foreclosure on settlement of debt.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivaentsinclude cash on hand and in banks, interest-earning deposits and federal funds sold. Interest-earning deposits mature within one year
and are carried at cost. Net cash flows are reported for loan and deposit transactions.

I nvestment Securities

Investment securities are classified as available for sale or held to maturity.

Securities held to maturity include bonds, notes, and debentures for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity and are
reported at amortized cost.

Available for sale securities consist of bonds, notes, debentures, and certain equity securities not classified as trading securities nor as held to maturity
securities. Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of tax, on available for sale securities are reported as a net amount as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity until realized.

Gains and losses on the sale of equity securities are determined using the average cost method, while al other investment securities use the specific
cost method.

All investment securities, regardless of classification, are monitored and tested for impairment. An investment security is considered to be impaired
when the unrealized loss is considered to be other than temporary. When this occurs, the investment is written down to the current fair market value with
the write-downs being reflected as a realized loss.

Premiums and discounts on all securities are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the period to maturity.

Investment securities fair values are based on observed market prices. Certain investment securities do not have observed bid prices and their fair
value is based on instruments with similar risk elements.

L oans

Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding, net of unearned discount, unamortized loan fees and costs, and the allowance for loan losses.
Interest on loans is recognized as income when earned on the accrual method. The Company’s general policy has been to stop accruing interest on loans
when it is determined a reasonable doubt exists as to the collectibility of additional interest. Income is subsequently recognized only to the extent that
cash payments are received provided the loan is not delinquent in payment and, in management’s judgment, the borrower has the ability and intent to
make future principal payments.

Loan origination and commitment fees aswell as certain direct loan origination costs are being deferred and the net amount amortized as an adjustment
to therelated loan’s yield. These amounts are being amortized over the contractual lives of the related loans.

Allowance for Loan L osses

The alowance for loan losses represents the amount which management estimates is adequate to provide for probable losses inherent in its loan
portfolio, as of the balance sheet date. The allowance method is used in providing for loan losses. Accordingly, al loan losses are charged to the
alowance and all recoveries are credited to it. The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to operations. The
provision for loan losses is based upon management’s quarterly review of the loan portfolio. The purpose of the review is to assess loan quality, identify
impaired loans, analyze delinquencies, ascertain loan growth, evaluate potential charge-offs and recoveries, and assess general economic conditions in
the markets served. An external independent loan review is aso performed annually for the Bank. Management remains committed to an aggressive
program of problem loan identification and resolution.

The allowanceis calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by type, excluding loans for which a specific allowance has been determined.
Loss factors are based on management’s consideration of the nature of the portfolio segments, changes in mix and volume of the loan portfolio, and
historical loan loss experience. In addition, management considers industry standards and trends with respect to nonperforming loans and its knowledge
and experience with specific lending segments.

Although management believes that it uses the best information available to make such determinations and that the allowance for loan losses is
adequate at December 31, 2004, future adjustments could be necessary if circumstances or economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions
used in making the initial determinations. A downturn in the local economy, employment and delays in receiving financial information from borrowers
could result in increased levels of nonperforming assets and charge-offs, increased |oan loss provisions and reductions in income. Additionally, as an
integral part of the examination process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review the Bank’sloan loss allowance. The banking agencies could require
the recognition of additions to the loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their examination.




Impaired loans are commercial and commercia rea estate loans for which it is probable the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. The Company individually evaluates such loans for impairment and does not aggregate loans
by major risk classifications. The definition of “impaired loans’ is not the same as the definition of “nonaccrual loans,” athough the two categories
overlap. The Company may choose to place aloan on nonaccrual status due to payment delinquency or uncertain collectibility, while not classifying the
loan as impaired if the loan is not a commercial or commercial rea estate loan. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include
payment status and collateral value. The amount of impairment for these types of impaired loans is determined by the difference between the present
value of the expected cash flows related to the loan, using the original interest rate, and its recorded value, or as a practical expedient in the case of
collateralized loans, the difference between the fair value of the collateral and the recorded amount of theloans. When foreclosure is probable, impairment
is measured based on the fair value of the collateral.

Mortgage loans on one-to-four family properties and all consumer loans are large groups of smaller-balance homogeneous loans and are measured for
impairment collectively. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays, which are defined as 90 days or less, generally are not classified asimpaired.
Management determines the significance of payment delays on a case-by-case basis taking into consideration al circumstances surrounding the loan and
the borrower including the length of the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of shortfall in relation to the principal and interest
owed.

Loans Held for Sale
In general, fixed rate residential mortgage loans originated by the Bank are held for sale and are carried at the aggregate lower of cost or market. Such
loans sold are not serviced by the Bank.

Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale

Foreclosed assets held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell. Prior to foreclosure, the value of the underlying
loan is written down to the fair value of the real estate to be acquired by a charge to the allowance for loan losses, if necessary. Any subsequent write-
downs are charged against operating expenses. Operating expenses of such properties, net of related income, and gains and losses on their disposition are
included in other expenses.

Foreclosed assets held for sale totaled $40,000 and $132,000 at December 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Bank Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using straight-line and accelerated methods over
the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which range from five to seven years for furniture, fixtures and equipment and thirty-one and a half years
for buildings and improvements. Costs incurred for routine maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Costs of major additions and
improvements are capitalized.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain officers and directors, and is the sole beneficiary on those policies. Bank-owned life
insurance is recorded at its cash surrender value, or the amount that can be realized. Increasesin the cash surrender value are recognized as non-interest
income.

Goodwill

The company accounts for goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS’) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets. This statement, among other things, requires a two-step process for testing the impairment of goodwill on at least an annual basis. This approach
could cause more volatility in the Company’s reported net income because impairment losses, if any, could occur irregularly and in varying amounts. The
Company performs an annual impairment analysis of goodwill. Based on the fair value of the reporting unit, estimated using the expected present value
of future cash flows, no impairment of goodwill was recognized in 2004 and 2003.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are generally expensed as incurred.
Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities result from temporary differences in financial and income tax methods of accounting, and are reflected at currently
enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax
laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

Earnings Per Share

The Company provides dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per shareis calculated utilizing net income as reported
in the numerator and weighted average shares outstanding in the denominator. The computation of diluted earnings per share differs in that the dilutive
effects of any stock options are adjusted in the denominator.

Employee Benefits
Pension and employee benefits include contributions, determined actuarialy, to a defined benefit retirement plan covering the eligible employees of

the Bank. The plan is funded on a current basis to the extent that it is deductible under existing federal tax regulations. Pension and other employee
benefits also include contributions to a defined contribution Section 401(k) plan covering eligible employees. Contributions matching those made by
eligible employees and an elective contribution are made annually at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Stock Options
The Company maintains astock option plan for the directors, officers and employees. When the exercise price of the Company’s stock optionsis greater

than or equal to the market price of the underlying stock on the date of the grant, no compensation expense is recognized in the Company’s financial
statements. Pro formanet income and earnings per share are presented to reflect the impact of the stock option plan assuming compensation expense had
been recognized based on the fair value of the stock options granted under the plan.

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for these options. Accordingly,
compensation expense is recognized on the grant date, in the amount equivalent to the intrinsic value of the options (stock price less exercise price, at
measurement date).

Had compensation costs for these options been determined based on the fair values at the grant dates for awards consistent with the method of FAS
No. 123, there would be no effect on the Company’s net income and earnings per share for 2004, 2003, and 2002.

Comprehensive Income
The Company is required to present comprehensive income in a full set of general-purpose financia statements for al periods presented. Other
comprehensive income is comprised exclusively of unrealized holding gains (losses) on the available for sale securities portfolio.

Reclassification of Compar ative Amounts
Certain items previously reported have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s reporting format. Such reclassifications did not affect net
income or shareholders' equity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financia Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS’) No. 123
(Revised 2004), Share-Based Payment. The Statement requires that compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in
financia statements and that this cost be measured based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. FAS No. 123 (Revised 2004)
covers a wide range of share-based compensation arrangements including share options, restricted share plans, performance-based awards, share
appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans. The Company will adopt FAS No. 123 (Revised 2004) on July 1, 2005 and is currently evaluating
the impact the adoption of the standard will have on the Company’s results of operations.
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In October 2003, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued SOP 03-3, “ Accounting for Loans or Certain Debt Securities Acquired
in aTransfer.” SOP 03-3 applies to aloan that is acquired where it is probable, at acquisition, that a transferee will be unable to collect al contractually
required payments receivable, SOP 03-3 requires the recognition, as accretable yield, the excess of all cash flows expected at acquisition over the
investor’sinitial investment in the loan as interest income on a level-yield basis over the life of the loan. The amount by which the loan’s contractually
required payments exceed the amount of its expected cash flows at acquisition may not be recognized as an adjustment to yield, a loss accrua or a
valuation allowance for credit risk. SOP 03-3 is effective for loans acquired in fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2004. Early adoption is
permitted. The adoption of SOP 03-3 is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2 - PER SHARE DATA

There are no convertible securities, which would affect the numerator in calculating basic and dilutive earnings per share, therefore, net income
as presented on the consolidated statement of income will be used as the numerator. The following table sets forth the composition of the
weighted average common shares (denominator) used in the basic and dilutive per share computation.

2004 2003 2002

Weighted average common shares outstanding 3,327,780 3,430,302 3,445,477
Weighted average treasury stock shares (2,773) (99,717) (109,165)
Weighted average common shares and common stock equivalents

used to calculate basic earnings per share 3,325,007 3,330,585 3,336,312
Additional common stock equivalents (stock options) used to

calculate diluted earnings per share 3,620 3,213 2,937
Weighted average common shares and common stock equivalents

used to calculate diluted earnings per share 3,328,627 3,333,798 3,339,249

Optionsto purchase 8,713 share of common stock at a price of $48.35 were outstanding during 2004, 10,890 shares of common stock at aprice
of $48.35 were outstanding during 2003 and 22,385 shares of common stock at prices from $38.18 to $48.35 were outstanding during 2002, but
were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share as they were anti-dilutive due to the the strike price being greater than the
market price as of the end of the fiscal year.
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NOTE 3- INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost of investment securities and their approximate fair values are as follows:

2004
(In Thousands)
GROSS GROSS
AMORTIZED UNREALIZED UNREALIZED FAIR
. COST GAINS LOSSES VALUE
Available for Sale (AFS)
U.S. Government and agency securities . .. .. $ 104,248 $ 207 $ (430) $ 104,025
State and political securities. .............. 46,829 766 (527) 47,068
Other debt securities. .................... 1,302 47 (7) 1,342
Total debt securities 152,379 1,020 (964) 152,435
Equity securities. . ............ ... ..., 19,015 6,579 (72) 25,522
Total Investment SecuritiesAFS $ 171,394 $ 7599 $ (1,036) $ 177,957
Held to Maturity (HTM)
U.S. Government and agency securities . .. .. $ 32 % — $ — % 32
State and political securities. . ............. 248 3 — 251
Other debt securities. .................... 278 — — 278
Tota Investment Securities HTM $ 558 $ 3 % — $ 561
2003
GROSS GROSS
AMORTIZED UNREALIZED UNREALIZED FAIR
. COST GAINS LOSSES VALUE
Available for Sale (AFS)
U.S. Government and agency securities . . . . . $ 150,218 $ 626 $ (1,015) $ 149,829
State and political securities. .............. 31,364 2,510 (22 33,852
Other debt securities. . ................... 1,581 75 (4) 1,652
Total debt securities 183,163 3,211 (1,041) 185,333
Equity securities. . .............. ... ... 18,158 7,146 (26) 25,278
Total Investment Securities AFS $ 201,321 $ 10,357 $ (1,067) $ 210611
Held to Maturity (HTM)
U.S. Government and agency securities . . . .. $ 7B % — $ @ 3% 74
State and political securities. . ............. 347 16 — 363
Other debt securities. .................... 264 — — 264
Tota Investment Securities HTM $ 686 $ 16 $ 1 $ 701

The following table shows the Company’s gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of time, that the
individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2004.

(I n Thousands) LESSTHAN TWELVE MONTHS TWELVE MONTHS OR GREATER TOTAL

GROSS GROSS GROSS
FAIR UNREALIZED FAIR UNREALIZED FAIR UNREALIZED

VALUE LOSSES VALUE LOSSES VALUE LOSSES
U.S. Government and agency securities . ............... $ 51,636 $ 226 $ 28,598 $ 204 $ 80,234 $ 430
State and political securities ................ ... ... 17,339 527 — — 17,339 527
Other debt securities ............ ... ... 142 3 146 4 288 7
Total debtsecurites . .......cviii i 69,117 756 28,744 208 97,861 964
Equity securities ... 1,187 64 298 8 1,485 72
Total . $ 70,304 $ 820 $ 29,042 $ 216 $ 99,346 $ 1,036

The policy of the Company is to recognize other than temporary impairment of equity securities where the fair value has been significantly below
cost for one year. For fixed maturity investments with unrealized losses due to interest rates where the Company has the positive intent and ability to
hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow a market recovery, declines in value below cost are not assumed to be other than temporary.
The Company reviews its position quarterly and has asserted that at December 31, 2004, the declines outlined in the above table represent temporary
declines and the Company does have the intent and ability to hold those securities either to maturity or to allow a market recovery.

The Company has concluded that any impairment of its investment securities portfolio is not other than temporary but is the result of interest rate
changes, sector credit rating changes, or company-specific rating changes that are not expected to result in the non-collection of principal and interest
during the period.
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The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2004, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will
differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have theright to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

(In Thousands)

HELD TO MATURITY

AVAILABLE FOR SALE

AMORTIZED FAIR AMORTIZED FAIR
COSsT VALUE COST VALUE
Dueinoneyearorless...................... $ IR IR 1,019 $ 1,024
Due after oneyear tofiveyears ............... 75 75 3,420 3,473
Due after fiveyearstotenyears............... 376 379 15 16
Dueaftertenyears. . .........ccooviiinennnnn. 32 32 147,925 147,922
$ 558 $ 561 $ 152,379 $ 152,435

Total gross proceeds from sales of securities available for sale were $162,796,000, $82,489,000, and $79,022,000 for 2004, 2003, and 2002,
respectively. The following table represents gross realized gains and gross realized |osses on those transactions:

(In Thousands)

) . 2004 2003 2002

Gross redlized gains:
U.S. Government and agency Securities ..................... $ 459 $ 254 $ 204
State and political securities. . ... 1,191 3,345 2,234
Other debt securities. .. ... 1 27 6
Equity Securities. .. ... 2,192 1,015 1,605
$ 3843 $ 4641 $ 4,049

Gross redlized |losses:
U.S. Government and agency Securities ..................... $ 1,623 $ 742 $ 125
State and political securities. . ............ i 23 50 67
Other debt Securities. . . ... e — 2 —
Equity securities. .. ... 21 368 3,822
$ 1,667 $ 1,162 $ 4,014

In 2003, the Company recorded an investment security gain of $24,000 resulting from a business combination where the
Company received the common stock of the acquirer in anon-monetary exchange. Thisgain isincluded in the above table. There

were no gains of this nature in 2004.

A charge of $292,000 was recorded in 2003 and $2,083,000 was recorded in 2002 to recognize other than temporary declinesin
the value of marketable equity securities. These losses are included in the above table.

Investment securities with a carrying value of approximately $71,730,000 and $34,059,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, were pledged to secure certain deposits, security repurchase agreements, and for other purposes as required by law.

There is no concentration of investments that exceed ten percent of shareholders’ equity for any individual issuer, excluding

those guaranteed by the U.S. Government.

NOTE 4 - LOANS
Major loan classifications are summarized as follows:

(In Thousands) 2004
PAST DUE
90 DAYS
PAST DUE OR MORE
30TO 90 & STILL NON-
CURRENT DAYS ACCRUING ACCRUAL TOTAL
Commercial and agricultural. ......... $ 29467 $ 389 $ 82 % 165 $ 30,103
Real estate mortgage:
Residential .................... 143,028 3,530 254 649 147,461
Commercial ................... 121,951 1,257 — 549 123,757
Construction. .. ............. ... 8,359 — — 6 8,365
Installment loans to individuals . .. .. .. 15,495 399 9 12 15,915
318,300 $ 5575 $ 345 $ 1,381 325,601
Less: Net deferred loan fees 1,096 1,096
Allowance for loan |osses 3,338 3,338
Loans, net $ 313,866 $ 321,167

13



2003

PAST DUE
90 DAYS
PAST DUE OR MORE
30TO 90 & STILL NON-
CURRENT DAYS ACCRUING ACCRUAL TOTAL
Commercial and agricultural. . ........ $ 23,105 $ 215 $ 21 $ 182 $ 23,523
Real estate mortgage:

Residential .................... 144,102 2,625 383 587 147,697
Commercial ................... 82,156 667 15 58 82,896
Construction. . ................. 7,637 15 — — 7,652
Installment loans to individuals . ... ... 14,738 252 10 — 15,000
271,738 $ 3774  $ 429 % 827 276,768
Less: Net deferred loan fees 940 940
Allowance for loan |osses 3,069 3,069
Loans, net $ 267,729 $ 272,759

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued or reduced amounted to approximately $1,381,000 and $827,000
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. If interest had been recorded at the original rate on those loans, such income would
have approximated $64,000, $55,000, and $24,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Interest
income on such loans, which is recorded as received, amounted to approximately $10,000, $7,000, and $17,000, for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, are as follows:

(In Thousands) 2004 2003 2002

Balance, beginning of year . ...... ... i $ 3069 $ 2953 $ 2,927
Provision charged to Operations . ... 465 255 365
Loanscharged off . ... ... .. i (283) (216) (402)
RECOVEITES . . o 87 77 63
Balance, end of Year . ... $ 3338 $ 3069 $ 2,953

The Company had no concentration of loans to borrowers engaged in similar businesses or activities which exceed five percent
of total assets at December 31, 2004 or December 31, 2003.

The Company grants commercial, industrial, residential, and installment loans to customers throughout north-central
Pennsylvania. Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio at December 31, 2004 and 2003, a substantial portion of its
debtors’ ability to honor their contracts is dependent on the economic conditions within this region.

NOTE 5- PREMISESAND EQUIPMENT
Major classifications of premises and equipment are summarized as follows at December 31

(In Thousands) 2004 2003
AN . oo $ 566 $ 566
= TS S 5,290 4,883
Furniture and eqUIPMENt . . ..ottt e e 6,756 6,348
Leasehold ImproVemMENtS. . .. ...t 894 867
TO Al . o 13,506 12,664
Lessaccumulated depreCiation ... ...ttt 8,624 8,039
N o $ 4882 $ 4,625

Depreciation charges to operations for the years ended 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $585,000, $631,000, and $526,000,
respectively.

The Bank has committed to $1,000,000 for the premises and equipment of a new branch in State College, PA.

NOTE 6 - GOODWILL

As of December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 goodwill had a gross carrying value of $3,308,000 and accumulated amortization of
$276,000 resulting in a net carrying amount of $3,032,000.

The gross carrying amount of goodwill is tested for impairment in the third quarter of each fiscal year. Based on fair value of
the reporting unit, estimated using the expected present value of future cash flows, no goodwill impairment |oss was recognized
in the current year.
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NOTE 7 - DEPOSITS

Time deposits of $100,000 or more totaled approximately $30,212,000 on December 31, 2004 and $27,386,000 on December
31, 2003. Interest expense related to such deposits was approximately $818,000, $829,000, and $1,098,000, for the years ended

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Maturities on time deposits of $100,000 or more are as follows:

(In Thousands) 2004

Threemonthsorless. . ... 6,869

Threemonthstosixmonths . ............. ... ... ...... 5,316

Six monthstotwelvemonths . ........................ 8,807

Overtwelvemonths. . ......... ... i, 9,220

Total .. 30,212

Total time deposits at December 31, 2004 mature as follows:

(In Thousands) 2004

2005 . e 81,340

2006 . . 22,237

2007 . o e 13,998

2008 . . e 5,811

2000 . .. 652

Thereafter. . . ..o 1,353

Total .. 125,391

Total deposits at December 31 are as follows:
(In Thousands) 2004 2003
Demand deposits. . ... $ 74,050 64,875
Interest-bearing demand deposits. . ........ 87,588 77,245
Savingsdeposits. . ... ... 69,807 67,298
Timedeposits . ..., 125,391 124,900
Total deposits . . ... oii $ 356,836 334,318

NOTE 8 - SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings consist of securities sold under agreements to repurchase and FHLB advances which generally represent
overnight or less than 30-day borrowings. The outstanding balances and related information for short-term borrowings are

summarized as follows:

(In Thousands) 2004 2003
Repurchase Agreements:
Balanceatyear end. .......... $ 13,845 $ 10,225
Maximum amount outstanding at any monthend .................. 15,301 15,665
Average balance outstanding during theyear. . .................... 13,317 13,214
Weighted-average interest rate:
Atyear end .. ... 1.82% 1.91%
Paidduringtheyear .......... ... i 1.77% 2.07%
Open Repo Plus:
Balanceatyearend............... $ 22,630 $ 36,140
Maximum amount outstanding at any monthend .................. 32,480 36,140
Average balance outstanding duringtheyear. ..................... 18,336 11,537
Weighted-average interest rate:
Atyear end .. ... 2.24% 1.06%
Paidduringtheyear . ...... ... i 1.64% 1.16%
Short Term FHLB:
Balanceatyear end. .......... .. $ — $ 900
Maximum amount outstanding at any monthend .................. 900 900
Average balance outstanding during theyear. . .................... 204 695
Weighted-average interest rate:
Atyear end . ... — 1.40%
Paid duringtheyear . ... ... ... 1.42% 1.42%
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NOTE 9- OTHER BORROWINGS

The following represents outstanding long-term borrowings by contractual maturities at December 31, 2004 and 2003:
(In Thousands)

2004 2003
Variable rate of 4.49%, maturing in 2007 $ 5000 $ 5,000
Variable rates between 3.14% and 5.56%, maturing in 2008 29,600 29,600
Variable rate of 5.06%, maturing in 2009 5,000 5,000
Variable rate of 6.65%, maturing in 2010 5,000 5,000
Variable rates of 4.25% and 4.72%, maturing in 2011 10,000 10,000
Variable rate of 3.68%, maturing in 2012 5,000 5,000
Variable rate of 3.74%, maturing in 2013 5,000 5,000
Fixed rate of 2.02%, maturing in 2005 1,400 1,400
Fixed rate of 2.58%, maturing in 2006 1,600 1,600
Fixed rates between 2.67% and 3.13%, maturing in 2007 6,500 1,500
Fixed rate of 6.95%, maturing in 2011 500 500
Fixed rate of 5.87%, maturing in 2013 528 528
Fixed rate of 6.92%, maturing in 2015 750 750
Tota $ 75878 % 70,878

The terms of the convertible borrowings allow the Federa Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") to convert the interest rate to an
adjustable rate based on the three month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) at a predetermined anniversary date of the
borrowing’s origination, ranging from three months to five years.

The Bank maintains a credit arrangement, which includes a revolving line of credit with the FHLB. Under this credit
arrangement, the Bank has a remaining borrowing capacity of approximately $145 million at December 31, 2004, is subject to
annual renewal, and typically incurs no service charges. Under terms of a blanket agreement, collateral for the FHLB borrowings
must be secured by certain qualifying assets of the Bank which consist principally of first mortgage loans.

NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES
The following temporary differences gave rise to the net deferred tax liability at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

(In Thousands) 2004 2003
Deferred tax asset:
Allowance for [0aN 10SSES . . ...ttt e $ 841 $ 716
Deferred COmpPeNSation. . . .. ...ttt 353 346
CONtINGENCIES . . o . ettt e e e e e 24 22
PENSION . .. 515 429
Loan feeSand COSES . .. ..ottt e 368 320
Investment securitiesallowanCe. . . .. ... oottt 98 119
(111 15 —
TOtal . . 2,214 1,952
Deferred tax liability:
BoONd aCCretion . . ... oottt 21 28
DEPreciation . . .. ..o 205 260
AMOItIZAION . .« . ottt et e e et e e e 225 150
Unrealized gains on available for sale securities. . .......... ... . i 2,231 3,159
Tt . e 2,682 3,597
Deferred tax liability, Net. ... ... o $ (468) (1,645)

No valuation allowance was established at December 31, 2004 and 2003, in the view of the Company’s ability to carry back taxes
paid in previousyears and certain tax strategies, coupled with the anticipated future taxable income as evidenced by the Company’s
earning potential.

The provision for income taxes is comprised of the following for the years ended December 31:

(In Thousands) 2004 2003 2002

Currently payable . ... $ 4512 $ 3666 $ 2,363

Deferred (benefit) expense .. ... (249) 37 (116)
Total Provision. .. ...t $ 4263 $ 3703 $ 2,247
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The effective federal income tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 was 27.8%, 24.9% and 20.2%,
respectively. A reconciliation between the expected income tax and the effective income tax rate on income before income tax
provision follows:

2004 2003 2002
AMOUNT % AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Provision at expected rate. . . . . . $ 5218 34.0% $ 5058 34.0% $ 3,785 34.0%
Decrease in tax
resulting from:

Tax-exempt income.. . . . .. (632) (41) (964) (6.4) (1,367) (12.3)

Other,net .............. (323) (21) (391) (2.7) (171) (1.5)

Effective income tax

and rates $ 4,263 27.8% $ 3703 24.9% $ 2,247 20.2%

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan™) for all employees hired prior to January 1, 2004,
meeting certain age and length of service requirements. Benefits are based primarily on years of service and the average annual
compensation during the highest five consecutive years within the final ten years of employment.

The following tables show the funded status and components of net periodic benefit cost from this defined benefit plan:
(In Thousands)

2004 2003
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginningof year. . .................... ... $ 7145  $ 6,473
SEIVICE COSE . . o ettt 447 443
INtErest COSt . ..o 398 384
Actuaria (gain) 10SS. . . ..ot (225) 43
Benefitspaid ... ..o (216) (198)
Benefit obligationatendof year.................. ... ... ... $ 7549 % 7,145
Changein plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginningof year..................... $ 4,042  $ 3,131
Actual lossonplanassets .. ... 394 620
Employer contribution. . ......... .. 347 506
Benefitspaid . ... (216) (198)
EXpensespaid. . ...t (18) (17)
Fair value of planassetsatendof year ... ........... ... ... ... ... 4,549 4,042
Funded Status. . . . ..ot (3,000) (3,203)
Unrecognized net actuarial 0SS ... ... 1,275 1,609
Unrecognized prior SErVICE COSE . . . v vt v et et 229 255
Unrecognized transition @Sset . . .. ..o oo (19) (22)
Net Accrued Benefit Cost Recognized . ...............ccvooi... $ (1,515) $ (1,261)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $5,606,000, and $4,913,000 at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. Amounts recognized in the Statement of Income consist of:

(In Thousands) 2004 2003 2002

SEIVICE COSE . o oot ettt ettt $ 47 % 43 3 381
INtErest COSt . ..ot 398 384 342
Expected returnonplanassets. .. ... (376) (256) (246)
Amortization of transitionasset. .. .......... ... e (©) (©) (©)]
Amortization of prior servicecost. . ... i 26 26 26
Recognized net actuarial gain ............c.c i 109 83 19
Net periodic benefit Cost .. ... 601 3 677 $ 519

The plan was amended, effective January 1, 2004, to cease eligibility for employees with a hire date of January 1, 2004 or later.
Employees with a hire date of January 1, 2004 or later are eligible to receive, after meeting certain age and length of service
requirements, an annua discretionary pension contribution from the Bank equal to a percentage of an employee's base
compensation. The dollars will be placed in a separate account within the 401(k) plan with a vesting requirement.
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The following information relates to the Plan’s projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and Plan
assets at December 31:

(In Thousands) 2004 2003
Projected benefit obligation ........... .. ... ... .. ... ... ... $ 7549 % 7,145
Accumulative benefit obligation. . ......... ... ... i 5,606 4,913
Fairvalueof planassets . . .. ..o 4,549 4,042
Assumptions
Wei ghted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31:

2004 2003 2002
DISCOUNE FaEE . o o ettt e e e e e e 5.75% 6.00% 6.00%
Rate of compensation inCrease . . .....oov i 4.75% 5.00% 5.00%

Wei ghted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic cost for years ended December 31:

2004 2003 2002
DISCOUNE [ .+ v v vttt e et e e e e e e e e 6.00% 6.00% 6.50%
Expected long-term returnonplanassets ............. .. i 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of compensation INCrease . . .. .o vttt 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The expected long-term rate of return was estimated using market benchmarks by which the plan assets would outperform the
market value in the future, based on historical experience adjusted for changes in asset alocation and expectations for overall
lower future returns on similar investments compared to past periods.

Plan Assets

The Company’s pension plan weighted-average asset allocations at December 31 by asset category are as follows:

Asset Category 2004 2003

Cash L 0.3% 0.6%

FiXed INCOME SECUNTIES . . . oottt 37.9% 38.7%

BQUILY . .o 61.8% 60.7%
Ot . o 100.0% 100.0%

The investment objective for the defined pension plan is to maximize total return with tolerance for slightly above average risk,
meaning the fund is able to tolerate short-term volatility to achieve above-average returns over thelong term. The portfolio’starget
exposure to equities is 60%, primarily invested in mid and large capitalization domestic equities. Exposure to small capitalization
and international stocks may be allowed.

Asset alocation favors equities, with target allocation of approximately 60% equity securities, 37.5% fixed income securities
and 2.5% cash. Due to violatility in the market, the target allocation is not always desirable and asset allocations will fluctuate
between the acceptable ranges.

It is management’s intent to give the investment managers flexibility within the overall guidelines with respect to investment
decisions and their timing. However, certain investments require specific review and approval by management. Management is
also informed of anticipated, significant modifications of any previously approved investment, or anticipated use of derivativesto
execute investment strategies.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future cost, are expected to be paid during the years ended December 31:

Estimated future benefit payments:

(In Thousands) 2005 ... $ 181
2006 ... 192

2007 ... 235

2008 ... 272

2009 ... 277

2010-2014 . ...l 2,242

Total ...l $ 3399

The company expects to contribute $575,000 to its Pension Plan in 2005.
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401(k) SAVINGS PLAN

The Company aso offers a 401(k) savings plan in which eligible participating employees may elect to contribute up to a
maximum percentage allowable not to exceed the limits of Code Sections 401(k), 404, and 415. The Company may make
matching contributions equal to a discretionary percentage to be determined by the Company. Participants are at all times fully
vested in their contributions and vest over a period of five years in the employer contribution. Contribution expense was
approximately $83,000, $75,000, and $80,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Certain directors have entered into deferred compensation agreements with the Corporation pursuant to which all or a specified
portion of their directors' fees are deferred until their retirement or termination of service. Interest on amounts credited to the
account balance for each director accrues at an amount equal to one half of the Corportation’s return on equity for the prior year.

To fund benefits under the deferred compensation plan, the Company has acquired corporate-owned life insurance policies on
the lives of the participating directors for which insurance benefits are payabl e to the Company. The total expense charged to other
expenses was $73,000, $104,000, and $98,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Benefits paid
under the plan were approximately $127,000 in 2004, $132,000 in 2003 and $51,000 in 2002.

NOTE 12 - STOCK OPTIONS

Prior to 1998, the Company granted a select group of its officers options to purchase shares of its common stock. These options,
which areimmediately exercisable, expire within threeto ten years after having been granted. Also, in 1998, the Company adopted
the “1998 Stock Option Plan” for key employees and directors. Incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options may be
granted to eligible employees of the Bank and nonqualified options may be granted to directors of the Company. In addition, non-
employee directors are eligible to receive grants of nonqualified stock options. Incentive nonqualified stock options granted under
the 1998 Plan may be exercised not later than ten years after the date of grant. Each option granted under the 1998 Plan shall be
exercisable only after the expiration of six months following the date of grant of such options.

A summary of the status of the Company’s common stock option plans are presented below:

2004 2003
WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE EXERCISE
SHARES PRICE SHARES PRICE
Outstanding, beginning of year ... 30,607 $ 39.39 33,385 $ 38.69
Granted...................... — — — —
Exercised .................... (5,277) 36.73 (2,778) 30.93
Forfeited . .................... (9,365) 38.63 — —
Outstanding, end of year ........ 15,965 40.24 30,607 $ 39.39
Options exercisable at year-end ... 15965  $ 40.24 30,607 $ 39.39
The following table summarizes information about nonqualified and incentive stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004:
OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE
AVERAGE AVERAGE
AVERAGE EXERCISE EXERCISE
EXERCISE PRICE SHARES LIFE PRICE SHARES PRICE
$ 48.35 8,410 4 $ 4835 8,410 $ 4835
$ 38.18 1,375 5 $ 3818 1,375 $ 3818
$ 29.66 6,180 2 $ 29.66 6,180 $ 29.66

NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain directors and executive officers of the Company and the Bank, including their immediate families and companies in
which they are principal owners (more than ten percent), are indebted to the Company. Such indebtedness was incurred in the
ordinary course of business on the same terms and at those rates prevailing at the time for comparabl e transactions with others.

A summary of loan activity with executive officers, directors, principal shareholders, and associates of such personsis listed below
for the years ended December 31:

BEGINNING ENDING

(In Thousands) BALANCE ADDITIONS PAYMENTS RESIGNED  BALANCE
2004 $ 7,227 $ 5720 $ 1273 $ —  $ 11674
2003 $ 6.785 $ 2374 $ 1791 $ 141 $ 7,227
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NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The following schedule of future minimum rental payments under operating leases with noncancellable terms in excess of one year
as of December 31, 2004:

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,
(In Thousands)

2005 .. $ 348
2006 . . 326
2007 293
2008 . . 194
2000 . 105
Thereafter . ... 1,837

Total ..o $ 3,103

Total rental expense for all operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $320,000, $269,000, and
$258,000 respectively.

The Company is subject to lawsuits and claims arising out of its business. In the opinion of management, after review and
consultation with counsel, any proceedings that may be assessed will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position of the Company.

NOTE 15 - OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit, interest rate or liquidity risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet. The contract amounts of these instruments express the extent of involvement the Company has in
particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss from nonperformance by the other party to the financial instruments for commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of these instruments. The Company uses the same
credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments.

The Company may require collateral or other security to support financial instruments with off-balance sheet credit risk.
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk are as follows at December 31:

(In Thousands) 2004 2003
Commitmentstoextendcredit. . ..., $ 42537 $ 47,454
Standby lettersof credit. . ... $ 1321 % 258

Commitments to extend credit are legally binding agreements to lend to customers. Commitments generally have fixed expiration
dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of fees. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future liquidity requirements. The Company evaluates
each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company,
on extension of credit is based on management’s credit assessment of the counterparty.

Standby letters of credit represent conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to
athird party. These instruments are issued primarily to support bid or performance related contracts. The coverage period for these
instruments istypically aone year period with an annual renewal option subject to prior approval by management. Fees earned from
the issuance of these letters are recognized upon expiration of the coverage period. For secured letters of credit, the collateral is
typically Bank deposit instruments or customer business assets.

NOTE 16 - CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Federal regulations require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts of capital. Specifically, each is required to
maintain certain minimum dollar amounts and ratios of Total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and of Tier 1 capital to average
total assets.

In addition to the capital requirements, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act (“FDICIA”) established five
capital categories ranging from “well capitalized” to “critically undercapitalized.”  Should any ingtitution fail to meet the
requirements to be considered “adequately capitalized,” it would become subject to a series of increasingly restrictive regulatory
actions.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the FDIC categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. To be classified as a well capitalized financial institution, Total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage
capital ratios must be at least 10%, 6%, and 5%, respectively.
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The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capita ratios are presented in the following tables, which shows that both met all
regulatory capital requirements.

The Company’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table:

(In Thousands) 2004 2003
AMOUNT RATIO AMOUNT RATIO

Total Capital

(to Risk-weighted Assets)
Actua $ 72,042 21.8% $ 66,820 23.0%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 26,475 8.0 23,225 8.0
To Be Well Capitalized 33,094 10.0 29,031 10.0
Tier 1 Capital

(to Risk-weighted Assets)
Actual $ 65,776 19.9% $ 60,547 20.9%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 13,238 4.0 11,613 4.0
To Be Well Capitalized 19,856 6.0 17,419 6.0
Tier 1 Capital

(to Average Assets)
Actua $ 65,776 12.1% $ 60,547 11.6%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 21,750 4.0 20,922 4.0
To Be Well Capitalized 27,187 5.0 26,153 5.0
The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table:
(In Thousands) 2004 2003

AMOUNT RATIO AMOUNT RATIO

Total Capital

(to Risk-weighted Assets)
Actual $ 55,717 17.6% $ 52,161 18.8%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 25,311 8.0 22,155 8.0
To Be Well Capitalized 31,639 10.0 27,693 10.0
Tier 1 Capital

(to Risk-weighted Assets)
Actuad $ 51,213 16.2% $ 47,770 17.3%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 12,656 4.0 11,077 4.0
To Be Well Capitalized 18,983 6.0 16,616 6.0
Tier 1 Capital

(to Aver age Assets)
Actua $ 51,213 9.7% $ 47,770 9.6%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 21,039 4.0 19,982 4.0
To Be Well Capitalized 26,299 5.0 24,978 5.0

NOTE 17 - REGULATORY RESTRICTIONS

The Pennsylvania Banking Code restricts the availability of capital funds for payment of dividend by all state-chartered banks
to the additional paid in capital of the Bank. Accordingly, at December 31, 2004, the balance in the additional paid in capital
account totaling approximately $11,700,000 is unavailable for dividends.

The Bank is subject to regulatory restrictions, which limit its ability to loan funds to Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. At
December 31, 2004, the regulatory lending limit amounted to approximately $5,502,000.

Cash and Due from Banks

Included in cash and due from banks are reserves required by the district Federal Reserve Bank of $1,197,000 and $1,151,000 at
December 31, 2004 and 2003. The required reserves are computed by applying prescribed ratios to the classes of average deposit
balances. These are held in the form of cash on hand and a balance maintained directly with the Federal Reserve Bank.

NOTE 18 - ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is required to disclose estimated fair values for its financial instruments. Fair value estimates are made at a
specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates do
not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time the Company’s entire holdings of a
particular financial instrument. Also, it isthe Company’s general practice and intention to hold most of its financial instruments
to maturity and not to engage in trading or sales activities. Because no market exists for a significant portion of the Company’s
financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current economic
conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and
involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions can significantly affect the estimates.

Estimated fair values have been determined by the Company using historical data and an estimation methodology suitable for
each category of financial instruments. The estimated fair value of the Company’s investment securities is described in Note 1.
The Company’s fair value estimates, methods, and assumptions are set forth below for the Company’s other financial instruments.

21



As certain assets and liabilities, such as deferred tax assets, premises and equipment, and many other operational elements of
the Company, are not considered financial instruments but have value, this estimated fair value of financial instruments would not
represent the full market value of the Company.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows at December 31,:

2004 2003
(In Thousands) CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE

Financial assets:
Cash and duefromequivalents . ..................... $ 12,626 $ 12,626 $ 10,230 $ 10,230
Investment securities:

Availableforsale ......... ... .. i 177,957 177,957 210,611 210,611

Heldtomaturity .......... ... 558 561 686 701
Loansheldforsale. ... ... 4,624 4,624 4,803 4,803
Loans, Net. . ... 321,167 331,350 272,759 287,310
Bank-owned lifeinsurance. . .......... ... ... ... 10,976 10,976 8,908 8,908
Regulatory stock. .. ... 6,206 6,206 6,588 6,588
Accrued interest receivable . ........... .. oL 2,246 2,246 2,242 2,242
Financial liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits .. ... $ 282,786 $ 263509 $ 269,443 $ 271,200
Noninterest-bearing deposits . . . ........... ... . ..... 74,050 74,050 64,875 64,875
Short-term borrowings. ... ... 36,475 36,475 47,265 47,265
Long-term borrowings, FHLB .. ..................... 75,878 77,858 70,878 73,107
Accrued interestpayable .. ....... .. 850 850 836 836

Cash and Cash Equivalents, L oans Held for Sale, Regulatory Stock, Accrued Interest Receivable, Short-term Borrowings,
and Accrued Interest Payable:

Thefair value is equal to the carrying value.
I nvestment securities.

The fair value of investment securities available for sale and held to maturity is equal to the available quoted market price. If
no quoted market price is available, fair value is estimated using the quoted market price for similar securities.

Loans:

Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics. Loans are segregated by type such as
commercial, commercial rea estate, residential real estate, construction real estate, and other consumer. Each loan category is
further segmented into fixed and adjustable rate interest terms and by performing and nonperforming categories.

The fair value of performing loans is calculated by discounting scheduled cash flows through the estimated maturity using
estimated market discount rates that reflect the credit and interest rate risk inherent in the loan. The estimate of maturity is based
on the Company’s historical experience with repayments for each loan classification, modified, as required, by an estimate of the
effect of current economic and lending conditions.

Fair value for significant nonperforming loans is based on recent external appraisals. |f appraisals are not available, estimated
cash flows are discounted using a rate commensurate with the risk associated with the estimated cash flows. Assumptions
regarding credit risk, cash flows, and discounted rates are judgmentally determined using avail able market information and specific
borrower information.

Bank-owned life insurance:
The fair value is equal to the Cash Surrender Value of life insurance policies.
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Deposits:

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as noninterest-bearing demand deposits, savings and NOW accounts, and
money market and checking accounts, is equal to the amount payable on demand as of December 31, 2004 and 2003. Thefair value
of certificates of deposit is based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows.

Thefair value estimates above do not include the benefit that results from the low-cost funding provided by the deposit liabilities
compared to the cost of borrowing funds in the market, commonly referred to as the core deposit intangible.

Other borrowings.
The fair value of other borrowings is based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows.

Commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, and financial guarantees written:

There is no material difference between the notional amount and the estimated fair value of off-balance sheet items at December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The contractual amounts of unfunded commitments and letters of credit are presented in Note 15.

NOTE 19 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed financial information for Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. follows:
(In Thousands)

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET, DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003
ASSETS:
Cash. . o $ 453  $ 369
Investment in subsidiaries:
BanK. . .o 56,743 54,133
NONbaNK. . . .. 15,980 15,307
Ot ASSELS. . o . ittt e e 104 91
TOtal BSSELS. . .. vt $ 73280 $ 69,900
LIABILITIESAND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY:
Other [1abilitiES. .. .o $ 15 $ 131
Shareholders equUIty . . .. ..o 73,165 69,769
Total liabilities and shareholders equity. .. ... $ 73280 $ 69,900

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(In Thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Operating income:
Dividends from subsidiaries ..............c..oiiiiiiii $ 6,440 $ 6,651 $ 4,878
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries................. 4,833 4,649 4,121
OPEraliNg EXPENSES . .« o o ettt ettt (190) (126) (113)
NELINCOME. . . oottt $ 11,083 $ 11,174 $ 8,886
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(In Thousands) 2004 2003 2002
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NELINCOME. . . ottt et e e e $ 11,083 $ 11,174 $ 8,886
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries ............. (4,833) (4,649) (4,121)
Other, NEL. . . ..o 9) (64) (23)
Net cash provided by operating activities . ................. 6,241 6,461 4,742
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment in subsidiaries. . ............ i (271) (1,039) —
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividendspaid. ... ....ooiit (5,843) (5,001) (4,124)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options. . ....................... 194 87 113
Purchase/retirement of treasury stock . ............ .. ... ... ... (237) (620) (401)
Net cash used in financing activities .. .................... (5,886) (5,534) (4,412)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASH. .. ... 84 (112) 330
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR . ... 369 481 151
CASH,END OF YEAR . .. e 453 $ 369 $ 481
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NOTE 20 - CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

2004 MARCH 31, JUNE 30, SEPT. 30, DEC. 31,
Interest iNCOMe. . . ... $ 7327 $ 7532 $ 7924 $ 8,164
INterest eXpense . .. ... 2,124 2,142 2,229 2,273
Netinterestincome ..., 5,203 5,390 5,695 5,891
Provisionforloanlosses . ........... ... 75 75 165 150
Non-interest inCome. .. ... 1,492 1,467 1,548 1,266
Securitiesgains, Net . ...t 545 583 407 641
NoON-interest eXpenses .. ... v i 3,473 3,453 3,509 3,882
Income before income tax provision. ................. 3,692 3,912 3,976 3,766
Incometax provisSion . ........veiiiiei i, 1,019 1,108 1,150 986
NELINCOME. . .ot $ 2673 $ 2804 $ 2826 $ 2,780
Earningsper share-basic ............ccovvvvinnn... $ 080 $ 085 $ 085 $ 0.83
Earningsper share-diluted. . ....................... $ 080 $ 08 $ 08 $ 0.83

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

2003 MARCH 31, JUNE 30, SEPT. 30, DEC. 31,

Interest income. . ... ..o ot $ 7092 $ 7251 % 7281 % 7,608
INterest eXpense . .. ..ot 2,386 2,395 2,327 2,157
Netinterestincome ..., .. 4,706 4,856 4,954 5,451
Provisionforloanlosses .............. ...t 90 45 90 30
Non-interest inCome. . .. ..o i 1,182 1,195 1,325 1,273
Securitiesgains, Net . . ...t 101 1,750 1,247 381
NON-iNterest eXPenseS .. ..o e e 3,139 3,186 3,290 3,674
Income before income tax provision.................. 2,760 4,570 4,146 3,401
Incometax provision .. .......vvuunii i 573 1,233 1,135 762
NELINCOME. .. oo e e $ 2,187 $ 3337 % 3011 $ 2,639
Earningsper share-basic ............. ... ... ..., $ 072 % 110 $ 1.00 $ 0.53
Earningsper share-diluted . . ....................... $ 072 % 110 $ 099 $ 0.54
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Consolidated Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income is determined by calculating the difference between the yields earned on interest-earning assets and the rates paid on interest-
bearing liabilities. To compare the tax-exempt asset yields to taxable yields, amounts are adjusted to taxable equivalents based on the marginal
corporate federal tax rate of 34%. The tax equivaent adjustments to net interest income for 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $907,000, $1,367,000, and
$1,738,000, respectively.

2004 vs 2003

Reported net interest income increased $2,212,000 or 11.1% from fiscal 2003 to 2004. Total interest incomeincreased $1,715,000 and is attributed
to the increase of $41,067,000 in the average balance of the loan portfolio, offset partially by a decrease of the return on investment securities of 4
basis points, the decrease in the average balance of the investment securities of $1,270,000, and a decrease in the return on loans of 57 basis points.

On atax equivalent basis, net interest income increased 8.2% or $1,752,000, to $23,086,000 in a period when hoth average interest earning assets
and average interest-bearing liabilitiesincreased. The increase of taxable security income of $1,216,000 is due to the purchases of U.S. Government
Agency securities over the past year, with the average of these securities increasing $13,585,000, while the decrease in the average of tax-exempt
State & Political securities decreased tax equivalent interest income $1,366,000. The investment portfolio has been repositioned from longer term
assets to shorter term assets to take advantage of the cash flow opportunities for reinvestment in anticipation of rising rates. The net growth in the
volume of the loan portfolio has generated additional interest income that has offset the 57 basis point decline in the overall portfolios weighted
average interest rate.

Within the loan portfolio, a 27 basis point decrease of the tax equivalent return on loans was offset by an increase of $41,067,000 in the average
balance of loans when comparing the year 2004 to the year 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, reported interest expense decreased $497,000 or 5.4% over the same period of 2003. Lower rates on
deposit accounts contributed the most substantial decrease in interest expense. The weighted average rate on deposits declined 38 basis points for
2004 as compared to 2003. The overall average balance of savings deposits increased $12,481,000, offset by a decrease in the weighted average rate
for anet decrease in interest expense of $343,000. Interest expense on time deposits decreased $538,000 due to both the 39 basis point declinein the
weighted average rate and the decrease in the average balance of $1,020,000.

During 2004, the Company borrowed an additional $5 million in long term advances through the FHLB to minimize future borrowing costs and
to enhance liability positioning. These additional borrowings were utilized by management to fund the substantial loan growth of 2004. The
$273,000 increase in expense on long-term borrowings is the result of average balances of long term FHLB borrowings increasing $8,442,000
partialy offset by the 17 basis point decline in the resulting weighted average interest rate for the year ending December 31, 2004 compared to the
same period in 2003. Interest paid on short-term borrowingsincreased $111,000 as aresult of an increase of the average balances outstanding during
the year of $6,866,000 offset partially by adecline in the weighted average interest rate of 3 basis points. The opportunity to borrow from the Federal
Home Loan Bank at historically low interest rates was utilized to assist the funding of the loan portfolio growth and is attributed to the increase of
interest expense paid on borrowings.

2003 vs 2002

Reported net interest income increased $1,511,000 or 8.2% from year end 2002 to year end 2003. The decreasein total interest income of $70,000
is the result of an increase of $44,185,000 in the average balance of investment securities held for the current period relative to the same period a
year ago offset by a decrease in the return on loans of approximately 62 basis points. Overall, interest income generated from the net increase in
volume of interest earning assets was offset by a decline in rates of approximately 95 basis points.

On atax equivalent basis, net interest income increased 5.6% or $1,140,000, to $21,334,000 in a period when both average interest earning assets
and average interest-bearing liabilities increased. The increase of taxable security income of $1,522,000 is due to the significant purchase of U.S.
Government securities over the past year, with the average of these securities increasing $70,159,000, while the decrease in the average of tax-exempt
State & Political securities decreased tax equivalent interest income $975,000. The investment portfolio has been repositioned from longer term
assets to shorter term assets to take advantage of the cash flow opportunities for reinvestment in anticipation of rising rates. The net growth in the
volume of investment holdings has generated additional interest income that has offset the 115 basis point decline in the overall portfolios weighted
average interest rates.

Within the loan portfolio, a 62 basis point decrease in the tax equivalent return on loans was partially offset by an increase of $7,612,000 in the
average balance of loans when comparing the year 2003 to the year 2002. Variable rate loans within the portfolio and other new loan originations at
lower effective rates aided in the reduction of new income compared to ayear ago because of the historically low rates.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, reported interest expense decreased $1,581,000 or 14.6% over the same period of 2002. Lower rates for
al deposit accounts contribute the most substantial decrease in interest expense. The weighted average rate on interest paid on deposits declined 92
basis points for the year 2003 as compared to 2002. The overall average balance of savings deposits increased $17,925,000, offset by a decrease in
the weighted average rate for anet decrease in the related interest expense of $997,000. | nterest expense on time deposits decreased $1,204,000 due
to both the 76 basis point decline in the weighted average rate and the decrease in the average balance of $5,453,000.

Favorable long-term borrowing rates offer opportunities to reduce interest expenses over the coming years. Throughout 2003, the Company
borrowed an additional $19.1 million in long term advances through the FHLB to minimize future borrowing costs and to enhance liability
positioning. These additional borrowings were utilized by management to take advantage of current investment opportunities while minimizing
interest rate risk. The $693,000 increase in expense on long-term borrowings is the result of these additional advances with average balances of
$20,986,000 partially offset by the 64 basis point decline in the resulting weighted average interest rate for the year ending December 31, 2003
compared to the same period in 2002. Interest paid on short-term borrowings decreased $73,000 as a result of an overall decline in the weighted
average interest rate of 131 basis points while the average balances outstanding during the year increased $8,322,000. The increase in short-term
borrowings is the result of taking advantage of the opportunity to borrow from Federal Home Loan Bank at historically low rates.
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AVERAGE BALANCESAND INTEREST RATES

The following tables set forth certain information relating to the Company’s average balance sheet and reflects the average yield
on assets and average cost of liabilities for the periods indicated and the average yields earned and rates paid. Such yields and
costs are derived by dividing income or expense by the average balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods
presented.

InTh d 2004
(In Thousands) AVERAGE AVERAGE
BALANCE (2) INTEREST RATE
ASSETS:
Interest-earning assets:
Securities:
U.S. Treasury and federal agency . .................. $ 138434 % 6,555 4.74%
State and political subdivisions(4) .................. 34,665 2,586 7.46%
Other. . 26,174 1,322 5.05%
Total sSeCurities . ... 199,273 10,463 5.25%
LOANS:
Tax-exempt10ans (4) . . .. oot 1,359 82 6.03%
All other loans, net of discount where applicable. .......... 301,248 21,309 7.07%
Total loans (1), (3) « oo vo e 302,607 21,391 7.07%
Total interest-earningassets. ... ... 501,880 31,854 6.35%
Other aSSEtS . . .ot it e e e 35,766
TOTALASSETS. ..o $ 537,646
LIABILITIESAND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY:
Interest-bearing ligbilities:
Deposits:
SAVINGS . . oot $ 159,650 1,361 0.85%
Othertime. ... e 130,340 3,414 2.62%
Total interest-bearingdeposits . ... ................ 289,990 4,775 1.65%
Short-term borrowings. . . ... . o 31,653 539 1.70%
Other borrowings. . .. ..o 75,727 3,454 4.56%
Total interest-bearing liabilities ................... 397,370  $ 8,768 2.21%
Demand deposits . . .. ..o i 64,434
Other ligbilities. . ..........ccoi i 4,295
Shareholders equity. . ... 71,547
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY ...t $ 537,646
Interestratespread. . ... 4.14%
Net interest income/margin .. .............ooouuu... $ 23,086 4.60%

1. Feeson loans are included with interest on loans. Loan fees are included in interest income as follows:
2004 $889,000, 2003 $1,032,000, 2002, $303,000.

2. Information on this table has been calculated using average daily balance sheets to obtain average balances.

3. Nonaccrual loans have been included with loans for the purpose of analyzing net interest earnings.

4. Income and rates on afully taxable equivalent basisinclude an adjustment for the difference between annual income
from tax-exempt obligations and the taxable equivalent of such income at the standard 34% tax rate.
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AVERAGE BALANCESAND INTEREST RATES
(IN THOUSANDS)

2003 2002
AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
BALANCE (2) INTEREST RATE BALANCE (2) INTEREST RATE
124849  $ 5,584 4.47% $ 54690 $ 2,923 5.34%
50,822 3,952 7.78% 77,216 4,927 6.38%
24,872 1,077 4.33% 24,452 2,216 9.06%
200,543 10,613 5.29% 156,358 10,066 6.44%
1,008 68 6.75% 2,309 185 8.01%
260,532 19,918 7.65% 251,619 20,789 8.26%
261,540 19,986 7.64% 253,928 20,974 8.26%
462,083 30,599 6.62% 410,286 31,040 7.57%
36,297 31,977
498,380 $ 442,263
147,169 1,704 1.16% $ 129,244 2,701 2.09%
131,360 3,952 3.01% 136,813 5,156 3.77%
278,529 5,656 2.03% 266,057 7,857 2.95%
24,787 428 1.73% 16,465 501 3.04%
67,285 3,181 4.73% 46,299 2,488 5.37%
370,601 9,265 2.50% 328,821 10,846 3.30%
56,672 50,877
3,780 3,334
67,327 59,231
498,380 $ 442,263
4.12% 4.27%

$ 21,334 4.62% $ 20,194 4.92%




Rate/Volume Analysis

The table below sets forth certain information regarding changes in our interest income and interest expense for the periods
indicated. For interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided on changes attributable to (i) changes
in volume (changes in average volume multiplied by old rate); (ii) changes in rates (changes in rate multiplied by old average
volume). Increases and decreases due to both rate and volume, which cannot be separated, have been allocated proportionally to
the change due to volume and the change due to rate. Income and rates are on a taxable equivalent basis.

Year Ended December 31,

(In Thousands) 2004 vs 2003 2003 vs 2002
I ncrease (Decr ease) I ncrease (Decr ease)
Dueto Dueto
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

Interest income:
Taxable investment securities. ........... $ 737 $ 479 $ 1216 $ 3223 % (577 $ 2,646
Tax-exempt investment securities. . ....... (1,197) (169) (1,366) (2,054) (28) (2,082)
LOANS. ..o v e 2,979 (1,574) 1,405 616 (1,604) (988)

Total interest-earning assets ........... 2,519 (1,264) 1,255 1,785 (2,209) (424)

Interest expenses:

Savingsdeposits. ....... ... . 136 (479) (343) 335 $ (1,332 (997)
Other timedeposits. ................... (31) (507) (538) (216) (988) (1,204)
Short-term borrowings .. ............... 116 (5) 11 194 (267) (73)
Other borrowings . ..............ouu... 388 (115) 273 1,021 (328) 693

Total interest-bearing liabilities. . . . . . . .. 609 (1,106) (497) 1,334 (2,915) (1,581)
Changein net interestincome ........... $ 1910 $ (158) $ 1752 % 451 $ 706 $ 1,157

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

2004 vs 2003

The provision for loan losses is based upon management’s quarterly review of the loan portfolio. The purpose of the review is
to assess loan quality, identify impaired loans, analyze delinquencies, ascertain loan growth, evaluate potential charge-offs and
recoveries, and assess general economic conditions in the markets served. An external independent |oan review is aso performed
annually for the Bank. Management remains committed to an aggressive program of problem loan identification and resolution.

Thealowanceis calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by type, excluding loans for which a specific allowance
has been determined. Loss factors are based on management’s consideration of the nature of the portfolio segments, changes in
mix and volume of the loan portfolio, and historical loan loss experience. In addition, management considers industry standards
and trends with respect to nonperforming loans and its knowledge and experience with specific lending segments.

Although management believes that it uses the best information available to make such determinations and that the allowance
for loan losses is adequate at December 31, 2004, future adjustments could be necessary if circumstances or economic conditions
differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. A downturn in the local economy, employment
and delays in receiving financial information from borrowers could result in increased levels of nonperforming assets and charge-
offs, increased loan loss provisions and reductions in income. Additionally, as an integral part of the examination process, bank
regulatory agencies periodically review the Bank’s loan loss allowance. The banking agencies could require the recognition of
additions to the loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their examination.

The allowance for loan losses increased from $3,069,000 at December 31, 2003 to $3,338,000 at December 31, 2004. At
December 31, 2004, allowance for loan losses was 1.01% of total loans compared to 1.10% of total loans at December 31, 2003.
Management’s conclusion is that the allowance for loan losses is adequate to provide for probable losses inherent in its loan
portfolio as of the balance sheet date.

The provision for loan losses totaled $465,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The provision for the same period in
2003 was $255,000. Management concluded that the increase of the provision is adequate with the |oan growth experienced during
2004 and economic changes during the year. Based upon this analysis, as well as the others noted above, senior management has
concluded that the allowance for loan losses remains at a level adequate to provide for probable losses inherent in the loan
portfolio.

2003 vs 2002

The allowance for loan losses increased 3.9% or $116,000 from fiscal 2002 after net charge-offs of $139,000 contributing to a
year-end allowance for loan losses of $3,069,000 or 1.10% of total loans. Based upon this analysis, as well as the others noted
above, senior management has concluded that the allowance for loan losses remains at a level adequate to provide for probable
losses inherent in the loan portfolio.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)

(In Thousands) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Balance at beginning of period . ............... ... ... $ 3069 $ 2953 $ 2927 $ 2879 $ 2823
Charge-offs:
Red estate. ... 121 63 262 154 165
Commercia and industrial .................... 50 37 80 122 38
Installment loansto individuals ................ 112 116 60 82 66
Total charge-offs............. ... .. ... ... 283 216 402 358 269
Recoveries:
Red estate. ... 50 42 25 9 8
Commercial and industrial .................... 4 16 21 8 20
Installment loansto individuals . ............... 33 19 17 17 11
Total recoVeries. . ... 87 77 63 34 39
Net charge-offs. . ... 196 139 339 324 230
Additions charged to operations . .................... 465 255 365 372 286
Balanceatendof period ........... ... ... $ 3338 $ 3069 $ 293 $ 2927 $ 2879

Ratio of net charge-offs during the period to average loans
outstanding during the period . ...................... 0.06% 0.05% 0.13% 0.13% 0.10%

NON-INTEREST INCOME

2004 vs 2003

Total non-interest income decreased $505,000 from fiscal 2003 to 2004. Security gains realized decreased $1,303,000.
Excluding the security gains, non-interest income increased $798,000. Service charges increased $66,000 due to an increased fee
structure. Earnings on bank-owned life insurance decreased $110,000 due to the decrease of the average crediting rate paid on the
policies as a result of the low rate environment. Commissions earned on the sales of insurance increased $684,000 due to the
expanded staff and market area of the sales. The majority of the increase in other income of $158,000 was attributed to
commissions generated from the new addition of title insurance to the bank’s product line.

(In Thousands) 2004 2003 % Change
Service charges $ 1983 $ 1,917 3.4%
Securities gains, net 2,176 3,479 (37.5)
Bank-owned life insurance 294 404 (27.2)
I nsurance commissions 2,282 1,598 42.8
Other income 1,214 1,056 15.0
Total non-interest income $ 7949 % 8,454 6.0%
2003 vs 2002

Total non-interest income for 2003 was $8,454,000, an increase of $3,199,000 from the prior year. Excluding security gains of
$3,479,000 in 2003 and $35,000 in 2002, other income decreased $245,000. Service charges increased 4.6% or $84,000 to
$1,917,000 in 2003.

Decreases in commission income from the sale of financial products sold by the Bank’s subsidiary, The M Group, accounted
for $209,000 of the total decrease of other operating income. Other operating income decreased $108,000 primarily due to a non-
recurring life insurance income item included in 2002, resulting in a $116,00 decrease.

(In Thousands) 2003 2002 % Change
Service charges $ 1917  $ 1,833 4.6%
Securities gains, net 3,479 35 9,840.0
Bank-owned life insurance 404 416 (2.9)
Insurance commissions 1,598 1,807 (11.6)
Other income 1,056 1,164 (9.3)
Total non-interest income $ 8454 % 5,255 60.9%
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NON-INTEREST EXPENSES

2004 vs 2003

Total non-interest expenses increased $1,028,000 or 7.7% from the year ended December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004.
Salaries and employee benefits increase of $675,000 was the result of the increase in commission earned by the M Group and
standard cost of living increases. Expenses related to the new State College Atherton Street branch caused the majority of the
$82,000 increase in occupancy expense. Increased maintenance and repairs contributed the $17,000 increase to furniture and
equipment expense. Advertising expense decreased $44,000 as the result of a purchase of brochures in 2003 for $22,000 and a
decrease in normal advertising expenses. Pennsylvania shares taxes increased $53,000 from 2003 to 2004. Other expenses
increased $245,000. This increase was primarily the increase of computer software amortization due to the implementation of
teller machines, the increase of legal, audit, and consultant feesin relation to Sarbanes-Oxley compliance, and expenses on the new
title insurance product.

(In Thousands) 2004 2003 % Change
Salaries and employee benefits $ 7937 % 7,262 9.3%
Occupancy expense, net 959 877 94
Furniture and equipment expense 1,016 999 1.7
Advertising expense 344 388 (11.3)
Pennsylvania shares tax expense 508 455 116
Other expenses 3,553 3,308 7.4

Total non-interest expenses $ 14317  $ 13,289 7.7%
2003 vs 2002

Total non-interest expenses increased $1,076,000 or 8.8% from the year ended December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003.
Salaries and employee benefits increased $318,000. This change was the result of the decline in commission earned by the M
Group and the retirement of an executive officer offset by the standard cost of living salary increases and an extra pay cycle in
2003 when compared to 2002. Expenses such as rent, maintenance, and utilities for the new State College Wal-Mart Branch caused
the mgjority of the $46,000 increase to occupancy expense. The depreciation of a new Wide Area Network has resulted in most
of the $162,000 increase to furniture and equipment expense. Advertising expense increased $16,000 due to a decrease in normal
advertising expenses offset by the purchase of new brochuresfor $22,000. Other operating expenses increased $490,000 consistent
with the addition of the aforementioned branch.

(In Thousands) 2003 2002 % Change
Salaries and employee benefits $ 7262 % 6,944 4.6%
Occupancy expense, net 877 831 55
Furniture and equipment expense 999 837 194
Advertising expense 388 372 4.3
Pennsylvania shares tax expense 455 411 10.7
Other expenses 3,308 2,818 174
Tota non-interest expenses $ 13289 $ 12,213 8.8%
INCOME TAXES
2004 vs 2003

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2004 resulted in an effective income tax rate of 27.8%
compared to 24.9% for 2003. Thisincrease is the result of an overall decline in revenue from tax-exempt loans and investment
securities as compared to revenue as a whole.

2003 vs 2002

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2003 resulted in an effective income tax rate of 24.9%
compared to 20.2% for 2002. Thisincreaseisthe result of management’s current investment strategy of reinvesting proceeds from
tax-exempt portfolio into other U.S. Government securities.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
INVESTMENTS

2004

Theinvestment portfolio decreased $32,782,000 or 15.5% in 2004. The decline in the investmentsis attributed to a $45,847,000
decrease in U.S. Treasury and Government Agency securities, $13,117,000 increase in states and political securities, $296,000
decrease in other debt securities and $244,000 increase in equity securities. The proceeds from the sale of securities was utilized
to fund loan growth. Thetotal realized gains on the securities for 2004 was $2,176,000 a decrease of $1,303,000 from December
31, 2003. The investment portfolio at year-end 2004 comprised of 58.3% U.S. Governement agency and Treasury securities,
26.5% state and political subdivisions, 14.3% equity securities and 0.9% other bonds, notes and debentures. Held to maturity
securities had a carrying value of $558,000. Available for sale securities had an amortized cost of $171,394,000 with an estimated
market value of $177,957,000.

2003

The investment portfolio increased $33,680,000 or 19.0% in 2003. The growth is largely attributed to management’s strategic
plan to benefit from the low borrowing rates by taking advantage of over a 200 basis point interest rate spread of investments with
similar maturity periods. The bank borrowed $19,100,000 in long-term FHL B advances to purchase securities and take advantage
of interest rate imbalances in the market. Short-term borrowing funded the balance of the additional investment securities
purchased. Most of the increase is attributable to an increase of $61,980,000 in U.S. Government agencies category, and a
$10,331,000 increase in the equity securities category. There was a $185,000 decrease in other bonds, notes and debentures,
$1,168,000 decrease in the U.S. Treasury securities category, and the state and political subdivisions category decreased
$37,278,000. The investment portfolio at year-end 2003 was comprised of 70.9% U.S. Government agency and Treasury
securities, 16.2% state and political subdivisions, 12.0% equity securities, and 0.9% other bonds, notes and debentures. Held to
maturity securities had a carrying value of $686,000. Available for sale securities occupied 99.7% of the total portfolio and had
an amoritized cost of $201,321,000 with an estimated market value of $210,611,000. The unrealized gain of $9,290,000 effected
shareholders’ equity by $6,132,000, net of deferred taxes.

The carrying amounts of investment securities at the dates indicated are summarized as follows for the years ended December 31

(In Thousands) DECEMBER 31,
2004 2003 2002
U.S. Treasury securities:
Availableforsale. ... $ 1,024 % 3128 % 4,296
U.S. Government agencies:
Heldtomaturity . . ... e 32 75 94
Availableforsale. . ... 103,001 146,701 84,702
State and political subdivisions:
Heldtomaturity. . ... e 248 347 796
Availableforsale. . ... 47,068 33,852 70,681
Other bonds, notes and debentures:
Heldtomaturity. . ... e 278 264 291
Availableforsale. . ... 1,342 1,652 1,810
Total bonds, notesand debentures. . .............. ... .. ...... 152,993 186,019 162,670
Corporate stock - Availableforsale................ ... i 25,522 25,278 14,947
TOtaAl . o $ 178515 $ 211,297 $ 177,617
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The following table shows the maturities and repricing of investment securities at December 31, 2004 and the weighted average
yields (for tax-exempt obligations on a fully taxable basis assuming a 34% tax rate) of such:

WITHIN AFTER ONE AFTER FIVE AFTER

(In Thousands) ONE BUT WITHIN BUT WITHIN TEN
YEAR FIVE YEARS TEN YEARS YEARS
U.S. Treasury securities:
AFSAMOUNE . ..ot et $ 1,024 $ — % — 3 —
Yidd. .o 3.43% — — —
U.S. Government agencies:
HTMAmMount ............ ... .. ..., — — — 32
Yidd. .o — — — 8.85%
AFSAmount ........... . ... . — 3,473 — 99,528
Yidd. .o — 5.31% — 5.06%
State and political subdivisions:
HTMAmMount ............ ... .. ..., — — 248 —
Yield. .o — — 5.75% —
AFSAmount ........... . ... . — — 16 47,052
Yield. .o — — 6.58% 7.41%
Other bonds, notes and debentures:
HTMAmMount ............ ... .. ..., 75 75 128 —
Yidd. .o 7.13% 6.48% 7.39% —
AFSAmount ........... . ... . — — — 1,342
Yield. .o — — — 7.14%
Total Amount. ... $ 109 $ 3548 $ 392 % 147,954
Total Yield............. .. i 3.68% 5.33% 6.32% 5.83%

All yields represent weighted average yields expressed on atax equivalent basis. They are calculated on the basis of the cost,
adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount and effective yields weighted for the scheduled final maturity of
each security. Scheduled maturities and actual maturities may differ due to certain investment securities having the ability to
prepay or call the bond without penalty. The taxable equivalent adjustment represents the difference between annual income from
tax-exempt obligations and the taxable equivalent of such income at the standard 34% tax rate (derived by dividing tax-exempt
interest by 66%).

LOAN PORTFOLIO
2004

Gross |loans for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased 17.7% to $324,505,000 from $275,828,000 at December 31, 2003.
Real estate mortgages increased $41,338,000 as a whole with commercial and construction real estate loans increasing $40,861,000
and $713,000 respectively, while residential loans decreased $236,000. Commercial and agricultural loans and installment loans
increased $6,580,000 and $915,000 respectively. Net deferred loan fees increased $156,000. Given the current market conditions,
management has directed its conservative lending approach toward well collateralized real estate loans. Commercial real estate
projects provided the greatest opportunity for growth in 2004. During 2004, gross loans grew $48,677,000 as a result of continued
expansion into the Centre County commercial market as well as increases in Lycoming and Clinton counties.

2003

Gross loans for the year ended December 31, 2003 increased 7.0% to $275,828,000 from $257,845,000. Real estate mortgages
increased $18,273,000 as a whole with residential, commercial and construction real estate loans increasing $6,973,000,
$7,004,000, and $4,296,000 respectively. Commercial and agricultural loans decreased $185,000, while installment loans to
individuals increased $66,000.

The amounts of loans outstanding are shown in the following table according to type of loan for the years ended December 31:

(In Thousands) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Domestic:
Commercial and agricultural . . . . . $ 30,103 $ 23523 $ 23,708 $ 22629 $ 26,471
Real estate mortgage:
Residential ................. 147,461 147,697 140,724 140,614 131,761
Commercial ................ 123,757 82,896 75,892 67,038 60,856
Construction................ 8,365 7,652 3,356 4,077 4,748
Installment loans to individuals. . . 15,915 15,000 14,934 17,896 21,503
Less. Net deferred loan fees . . . .. 1,096 940 769 631 541
Grossloans. . ................. $ 324505 $ 275,828 $ 257,845 $ 251,623 $ 244,798
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The amount of loans outstanding at December 31, 2004 are presented below by category and maturity:
COMMERCIAL INSTALLMENT

AND LOANSTO
(In Thousands) REAL ESTATE OTHER INDIVIDUALS TOTAL
Loans with floating interest rates:
lyearorless............oooiinn. $ 17641  $ 9497 $ 1,724 $ 28,862
lthroughb5years.................... 7,004 3,615 74 10,693
S5through10years. . ................. 30,891 3,112 149 34,152
After 10years.. ... 154,310 2,340 128 156,778
SubTotal ............oiia.. 209,846 18,564 2,075 230,485
L oans with predetermined interest rates:
lyearorless................oooon.. 3,370 718 1,038 5,126
lthrough5years.................... 22,001 7,985 11,066 41,052
S5through10years. .................. 23,511 2,697 1,682 27,890
After10years . ..............on... 19,749 139 64 19,952
SubTotal ...................... 68,631 11,539 13,850 94,020
Total .o $ 278477 $ 30,103 $ 15925 $ 324,505

(1) The loan maturity information is based upon original loan terms and is not adjusted for “rollovers.” In the ordinary course of
business, loans maturing within one year may be renewed, in whole or in part, as to principal amount at interest rates prevailing
at the date of renewal.

(2) Scheduled repayments are reported in maturity categories in which the payment is due.

The Bank does not make loans that provide for negative amortization nor do any loans contain conversion features. The Bank
does not have any foreign loans outstanding at December 31, 2004.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
2004

The allowance for loan losses represents the amount which management estimates is adequate to provide for probable losses
inherent in itsloan portfolio, as of the balance sheet date. The allowance method isused in providing for loan losses. Accordingly,
all loan losses are charged to the allowance and al recoveries are credited to it. The alowance for loan losses is established
through a provision for loan losses charged to operations. The provision for loan losses is based upon management’s quarterly
review of the loan portfolio. The purpose of the review is to assess loan quality, identify impaired loans, analyze delinquencies,
ascertain loan growth, evaluate potential charge-offs and recoveries, and assess general economic conditionsin the markets served.
An external independent loan review is also performed annually for the Bank. Management remains committed to an aggressive
program of problem loan identification and resolution.

Thealowanceis calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by type, excluding loans for which a specific alowance
has been determined. Loss factors are based on management’s consideration of the nature of the portfolio segments, changesin
mix and volume of the loan portfolio, and historical loan loss experience. In addition, management considers industry standards
and trends with respect to nonperforming loans and its knowledge and experience with specific lending segments.

Although management believes that it uses the best information available to make such determinations and that the allowance
for loan losses is adequate at December 31, 2004, future adjustments could be necessary if circumstances or economic conditions
differ substantially from the assumptions used in making theinitial determinations. A downturn in the local economy, employment
and delays in receiving financial information from borrowers could result in increased levels of nonperforming assets and charge-
offs, increased loan loss provisions and reductions in income. Additionally, as an integral part of the examination process, bank
regulatory agencies periodically review the Bank’s loan loss allowance. The banking agencies could require the recognition of
additions to the loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their examination.

The allowance for loan losses increased from $3,069,000 at December 31, 2003 to $3,338,000 at December 31, 2004. At
December 31, 2004, allowance for loan losses was 1.01% of total loans compared to 1.10% of total loans at December 31, 2003.
This percentage is consistent with the Bank’s historical experience and peer banks. Management’s conclusion isthat the allowance
for loan losses is adequate to provide for probable losses inherent in its loan portfolio as of the balance sheet date.

Based upon this analysis, as well as the others noted above, senior management has concluded that the allowance for |oan losses
remains at alevel adeguate to provide for probable losses inherent in its loan portfolio.

2003

At December 31, 2003, the allowance for loan losses as a percent of gross loans remained the same as December 31, 2002 at
1.10%. Gross loansincreased by $17,983,000 from $257,845,000 at December 31, 2002 to $275,828,000 at December 31, 2003.

Nonaccruing loans decreased $44,000 from year-end 2002. Overall nonperforming loans decreased $840,000 to $1,256,000
from fiscal year end 2002.

Based on management’s loan-by-loan review, the past performance of the borrowers and current economic conditions, including
recent business closures and bankruptcy levels, management does not anticipate any current losses related to nonaccrual,
nonperforming, or classified loans that have already been considered in its overall judgment of the adequacy of the reserve.

The following table presents information concerning nonperforming loans. The accrual of interest will be discontinued when
the principal or interest of aloan isin default for 90 days or more, or as soon as payment is questionable, unless the loan is well
secured and in the process of collection. Consumer loans and residential real estate loans secured by 1 to 4 family dwellings shall
ordinarily not be subject to those guidelines. The reversal of previously accrued but uncollected interest applicable to any loan
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placed in anonaccrual status and the treatment of subsequent payments of either principal or interest will be handled in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. These principles do not require a write-off of previously accrued interest if
principal and interest are ultimately protected by sound collateral values. A nonperforming loan may be restored to an accruing

status when:
1. Principal and interest is no longer due and unpaid.

2. It becomes well secured and in the process of collection.
3. Prospects for future contractual payments are no longer in doubt.

TOTAL NONPERFORMING LOANS

NONACCRUAL

(In Thousands)

2004 ... $
2003 ... $
2002 ... $
2001 ... $
2000 ... .. $

90 DAYS
PAST DUE

& STILL
ACCRUING

345
429
1,225
338
27

D P B BB

If interest had been recorded at the original rate on those loans, such income would have approximated $64,000, $55,000, and
$24,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. Interest income on such loans, which is recorded
as received, amounted to approximately $10,000, $7,000, and $17,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,

respectively.

Thelevel of nonaccruing loans continues to fluctuate annually and is attributed to the various economic factors experienced both
regionally and nationally. Overall the portfolio is well secured with a majority of the balance making regular payments or
scheduled to be satisfied in the near future. Presently there are no significant amounts of loans where serious doubts exist as to
the ability of the borrower to comply with the current loan payment terms which are not included in the nonperforming categories

as indicated above.

ALLOCATION IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

DECEMBER 31, 2004:
Balance at end of period applicable to:

Commercial and agricultural .. ......... ... ... oL

Real estate mortgage:

Residential. . .........c i
Commercial. ...
CONSEIUCLION & ..ttt e e e e e e e e
Installment loansto individuals. .. ........................
Unallocated. . . ...

DECEMBER 31, 2003:
Balance at end of period applicable to:

Commercial and agricultural ................ ... ... ......

Real estate mortgage:

Residential. . ...
CommErCial. . ...t
CONSETUCLION & ..ttt e e e e e e e e e

............. $ 361

............. 1,280
............. 1,399
............. 75
............. 207
............. 16

............. $ 3,338

............. $ 353

............. 1,483
............. 916

............. 240

PERCENT OF
LOANSIN
EACH

CATEGORY TO
AMOUNT TOTAL LOANS

9.1%

46.1%

37.5%

2.5%

4.8%

100.0%

8.5%

53.4%

29.9%

2.8%

5.4%

100.0%

............. $ 3,069




DECEMBER 31, 2002:
Balance at end of period applicable to:

Commercial and agricultural .. ... . $ 471 9.2%

Real estate mortgage:
Residential. . . .....co i 1,162 54.4%
COMMEICIAl . . ottt e e e e e 1,082 29.3%
CONSITUCLION .« . o ettt ettt e e e e e e e e 66 1.3%
Installment loanstoindividuals. . ........... i 172 5.8%
TOtal . . $ 2,953 100.0%

DECEMBER 31, 2001:
Balance at end of period applicable to:

Commercial and agricultural . ......... .. $ 414 9.0%
Real estate mortgage:
Residential. . . ...t 1,379 55.8%
COMMEICIAl . . .ot 763 26.5%
CONSITUCTION .« . ot ettt e e e e e e e 74 1.6%
Installment loansto individuals. . . ...t 271 7.1%
Unallocated general allowance . ... 26 —
TOtal . $ 2,927 100.0%

DECEMBER 31, 2000:
Balance at end of period applicable to:

Commercial and agricultural .. ... .. $ 541 10.8%
Real estate mortgage:
Residential. . . .....oo i 1,211 53.7%
COMMEICIAl . . ottt e e e e 723 24.8%
(@] 10 Tox 1 oo X 71 1.9%
Installment loanstoindividuals. . ........... i 306 8.8%
Unallocated general allowance . ... 27 —
TOtal . . $ 2,879 100.0%
DEPOSITS
2004

Total average deposits were $354,424,000 for 2004, an increase of $19,223,000 or 5.7%. Total demand deposits increased
$15,120,000. Noninterest-bearing demand deposits increased $7,762,000 and interest-bearing demand deposits increased
$7,358,000. Savings deposits increased $5,123,000 while time deposits decreased $1,020,000. Low rates have influenced
investors away from longer term commitments which has resulted in an increase in more liquid accounts such as demand deposits
and savings and a decrease in time deposit accounts.

2003

Total average deposits were $335,201,000 for 2003, an increase of $18,267,000 or 5.8%. Total demand deposits increased
$16,517,000. Noninterest-bearing demand deposits increased $5,795,000 and interest-bearing demand deposits increased
$10,722,000. Savings deposits increased $7,203,000 while time deposits decreased $5,453,000. Historically low rate levels have
influenced investors away from longer term commitments which has resulted in an increase in more liquid accounts such as
demand deposits and savings and a decrease in time deposit accounts. The shift from time deposits to demand and savings deposits
have also had a positive impact on earnings. More details pertaining to the changesin interest expense are stated in the Net Interest
Income discussion.
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The average amount and the average rate paid on deposits are summarized below:

2004 2003 2002
(In Thousands) AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
AMOUNT RATE AMOUNT RATE AMOUNT RATE
DEPOSITS IN DOMESTIC
BANK OFFICES:
Demand deposits:
Noninterest-bearing. ........ $ 64,434 0.00% 56,672 0.00% $ 50,877 0.00%
Interest-bearing . ........... 89,854 0.87% 82,496 1.15% 71,774 2.13%
Savings deposits. .. ........... 69,796 0.83% 64,673 1.17% 57,470 2.04%
Timedeposits. ............... 130,340 2.62% 131,360 2.25% 136,813 3.77%
Total average deposits.... $ 354,424 1.35% $ 335201 1.39% $ 316,934 2.48%

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
2004
Total shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2004 was $73,165,000, an increase of $3,396,000 from the balance at December 31,
2003 of $69,769,000. Net income and the exercising of stock options contributed $11,083,000 and $194,000, respectively, to
shareholders' equity. The net change in the unrealized appreciation on securities available for sale from year end 2003 to 2004
reduced shareholders' equity by $1,801,000. Additional reductions to shareholders equity included $5,843,000 in dividends to
shareholders and $237,000 for the purchase of treasury stock.

2003

Shareholders’ equity is evaluated in relation to total assets and the risks associated with those assets. A company is more likely
to meet its cash obligations and absorb unforeseen losses when the capital resources are greater. Total shareholders equity at
December 31, 2003 was $69,769,000, an increase of $6,627,000 from the balance at December 31, 2002 of $63,142,000. Net
income and the exercising of stock options contributed $11,174,000 and $87,000, respectively, to shareholders equity. The
unrealized appreciation on securities also added $987,000 to total equity. The increases in shareholders’ equity were offset by
$5,001,000 in dividends to shareholders.

Bank regulators have risk based capital guidelines. Under these guidelines, banks are required to maintain minimum ratios of
core capital and total qualifying capital as a percentage of risk weighted assets and certain off-balance sheet items. At December
31, 2004, the Company’s required ratios were well above the minimum ratios as follows:

2004
MINIMUM
COMPANY STANDARDS
Tier 1 capital ratio 19.9% 4.0%
Total capital ratio 21.8% 8.0%

For a more comprehensive discussion of these requirements, see “Regulations and Supervision” on the Form 10-K.
Management believes that the Company will continue to exceed regulatory capital requirements.

RETURN ON EQUITY AND ASSETS:
The ratio of net income to average total assets and average shareholders' equity and certain ratios are presented as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Percentage of net income to:
Averagetotal @SSEtS. . . ..ot 2.06% 2.24% 2.01%
Average shareholders equity. . . ...t 15.49% 16.60% 15.00%
Percentage of dividends declared per commonshare ............. ... .. ... .. ... ... 52.72% 44.76% 46.40%
Percentage of average shareholders' equity to averagetotal assets. .................. 13.30% 13.51% 13.39%
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LIQUIDITY, INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY AND MARKET RISK

Fundamental objectives of the Company’s asset/liability management process are to maintain adequate liquidity while minimizing
interest rate risk. The maintenance of adequate liquidity provides the Company with the ability to meet its financial obligations to
depositors, loan customers and shareholders. Additionally, it provides funds for normal operating expenditures and business
opportunities as they arise. The objective of interest rate sensitivity management is to increase net interest income by managing
interest sensitive assets and liabilities in such away that they can be repriced in response to changes in market interest rates.

The Company, like other financia institutions, must have sufficient funds available to meet its liquidity needs for deposit
withdrawals, loan commitments and expenses. In order to control cash flow, the bank estimates future flows of cash from deposits
and loan payments. The primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans and mortgage-backed
securities, as well as Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings. Funds generated are used principally to fund loans and purchase
investment securities. Management believes the Company has adequate resources to meet its normal funding requirements.

Management monitors the Company’s liquidity on both a long and short-term basis thereby, providing management necessary
information to react to current balance sheet trends. Cash flow needs are assessed and sources of funds are determined. Funding
strategies consider both customer needs and economical cost. Both short and long term funding needs are addressed by maturities
and sales of available for saleinvestment securities, loan repayments and maturities, and liquidating money market investments such
asfederal funds sold. The use of these resources, in conjunction with access to credit provides core ingredients to satisfy depositor,
borrower and creditor needs.

Management monitors and determines the desirable level of liquidity. Consideration is given to loan demand, investment
opportunities, deposit pricing and growth potential as well as the current cost of borrowing funds. The Company has a current
borrowing capacity at the Federa Home Loan Bank of $145,110,000. In addition to this credit arrangement the Company has
additional lines of credit with correspondent banks of $10,500,000. The Company’s management believes that it has sufficient
liquidity to satisfy estimated short-term and long-term funding needs. Federal Home Loan Bank advances totaled $98,508,000 as
of December 31, 2004. The Bank borrowed an additional $5,000,000, in FHLB long term borrowings in 2004 to supplement the
securities proceeds to fund loan growth.

Interest rate sensitivity, which is closely related to liquidity management, is a function of the repricing characteristics of the
Company’s portfolio of assets and liabilities. Asset/liability management strives to match maturities and rates between loan and
investment security assets with the deposit liabilities and borrowings that fund them. Successful asset/liability management results
in a balance sheet structure which can cope effectively with market rate fluctuations. The matching process is affected by
segmenting both assets and liabilities into future time periods (usually 12 months, or less) based upon when repricing can be
effected. Repriceable assets are subtracted from repriceable liabilities, for a specific time period to determine the “gap”, or
difference. Once known, the gap is managed based on predictions about future market interest rates. Intentional mismatching, or
gapping, can enhance net interest income if market rates move as predicted. However, if market rates behave in a manner contrary
to predictions, net interest income will suffer. Gaps, therefore, contain an element of risk and must be prudently managed. In
addition to gap management, the Company has an asset liability management policy which incorporates a market value at risk
calculation which is used to determine the effects of interest rate movements on shareholders' equity and a simulation analysis to
monitor the effects of interest rate changes on the Company’s balance sheets.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

In this analysis the Company examines the result of a 100 and 200 basis point change in market interest rates and the effect on
net interest income. It is assumed that the change is instantaneous and that all rates move in a parallel manner. Assumptions are
also made concerning prepayment speeds on mortgage |oans and mortgage securities. The following is arate shock analysisfor the
period indicated:

DECEMBER 31, 2004
NET INTEREST

CHANGESIN INCOME CHANGE (AFTER TAX)
RATES (IN THOUSANDS)
-100 $ (1,093)
+100 $ 72
+200 $ 255
+300 $ 694

The model utilized to create the report presented above makes various estimates at each level of interest rate change regarding
cash flow from principal repayment on loans and mortgage-backed securities and or call activity on investment securities. Actual
results could differ significantly from these estimates which would result in significant differences in the calculated projected
change. In addition, the limits stated above do not necessarily represent the level of change under which management would
undertake specific measures to realign its portfolio in order to reduce the projected level of change. Generally, management
believes the Company is well positioned to respond expeditiously when the market interest rate outlook changes.
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INFLATION

The asset and liability structure of a financia institution is primarily monetary in nature, therefore, interest rates rather than
inflation have a more significant impact on the Company’s performance. Interest rates are not always affected in the same
direction or magnitude as prices of other goods and services, but are reflective of fiscal policy initiatives or economic factors that
are not measured by a price index.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s accounting policies are intergral to understanding the results reported. The accounting policies are described in
detail in Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements. Our most complex accounting policies require management’s judgment
to ascertain the valuation of assets, liabilities, commitments and contingencies. We have established detailed policies and control
procedures that are intended to ensure valuation methods are well controlled and applied consistently from period to period. In
addition, the policies and procedures are intended to ensure that the process for changing methodol ogies occurs in an appropriate
manner. The following is a brief description or our current accounting policies involving significant management valuation
judgments.

Other Than Temporary Impairment of Equity Securities

Equity securities are evaluated periodically to determine whether a decline in their value is other than temporary, management
utilized criteria such as the magnitude and duration of the decline, in addition to the reason underlying the decline, to determine
whether the loss in value is other than temporary, The term “other than temporary” is not intended to indicate that the decline is
permanent. It indicates that the prospects for a near term recovery of value are not necessarily favorable, or that thereis alack of
evidenceto support fair values equal to, or greater than, the carrying value of theinvestment. Once adeclinein valueisdetermined
to be other than temporary, the value of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to earnings is recognized.

Allowance for Loan L osses

Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses involves a high degree of judgment. The Company’s allowance for
loan losses provides for probable losses based upon evaluations of known, and inherent risks in the loan portfolio.

Management uses historical information to assess the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses aswell asthe prevailing business
environment; as it is affected by changing economic conditions and various external factors, which may impact the portfolio in
ways currently unforeseen. The allowance is increased by provisions for loan losses and by recoveries of loans previously
charged-off and reduced by loans charged-off. For afull discussion of the Company’s methodology of assessing the adequacy of
the reserve for loan losses, refer to Note 4 of “Notes and Consolidated Finanical Statements” of the Form 10-K.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As discussed in Note 6 of the consolidated financial statements, the Company must assess goodwill and other intangible assets
each year for impairment. This assessment involves estimating cash flows for future periods. If the future cash flows were less
than the recorded goodwill and other intangible assets balances, we would be required to take a charge against earnings to write
down the assets to the lower value.

Deferred Tax Assets

We use an estimate of future earnings to support our position that the benefit of our deferred tax assetswill berealized. If future
income should prove non-existent or less than the amount of the dererred tax assets within the tax years to which they may be
applied, the asset may not be realized and our net income will be reduced. Our deferred tax assets are described further in Note
10 of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The Corporation has various financial obligations, including contractual obligations which may require future cash payments.
The following table presents in thousands, as of December 31, 2004, significant fixed and determinable contractual obligations to
third parties by payment date. Further discussion of the nature of each obligation is included in the referenced note to the
consolidated financial statements.

Payments Due in

(In Thousands) Oneto  Threeto Over

One Year Three Five Five

or Less Years Years Years Total

Deposits without a stated maturity ................... $ 231,445 $ — — $ — $ 231,445
TiMmedeposits ... e 81,340 36,235 6,463 1,353 125,391
Security repurchase agreements .. ... 13,845 — — — 13,845
Borrowed funds. ... ....... .. i 22,630 — — — 22,630
Long-termdebt ........ ... .. . . 1,400 13,100 34,600 26,778 75,878
Operatingleases ... 348 619 299 1,837 3,103

The Corporation’s operating |ease obligations represent short and long-term lease and rental payment for facilities, certain software
and data processing and other equipment.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIESLITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

This Report contains certain “forward-looking statements’ including statements concerning plans, objectives, future events or
performance and assumptions and other statements which are other than statements of historical fact.

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements. In order to comply
with the terms of the safe harbor, the Company notes that a variety of factors could cause the Company’s actual results and
experience to differ materially from the anticipated results or other expectations expressed in the Company’s forward-looking
statements. The risks and uncertainties that may affect the operations, performance, development and results of the Company’s
business include the following: general economic conditions and changes in interest rates including their impact on capital
expenditures; business conditions in the banking industry; the regulatory environment; rapidly changing technology and evolving
banking industry standards; the effect of changes in accounting policies and practices, including increased competition with
community, regional and national financial institutions; new service and product offerings by competitors and price pressures;
changes in the Company’s organization, compensation and benefit plans; and similar items.
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PART |
ITEM 1 BUSINESS

A. General Development of Business and History

On January 7, 1983, Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania as a bank holding company. The Jersey Shore State Bank (the “Bank™) became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and each outstanding share of Bank common stock was converted into one share of Company common stock. This
transaction was approved by the shareholders of the Bank on April 11, 1983 and was officially effective on July 12, 1983. The
Company’s business has consisted primarily of managing and supervising the Bank, and its principal source of income has been
dividends paid by the Bank. The Company’s two other wholly-owned subsidiaries are Woods Real Estate Development Co, Inc.
and Woods Investment Co., Inc.

The Bank is engaged in commercial and retail banking and the taking of time and regular savings and demand deposits, the
making of commercial and consumer loans and mortgage loans, and safe deposit services. Auxiliary services, such as cash
management, are provided to commercia customers. The Bank operates full banking services with eleven branch offices and a
Mortgage/L oan Center in Northcentral Pennsylvania.

In October 2000, the Bank acquired The M Group, Inc. D/B/A The Comprehensive Financial Group (“The M Group”). The M
Group, which operates as a subsidiary of the Bank, offers insurance and securities brokerage services. Securities are offered by
The M Group through ING Financia Partners, Inc., aregistered broker-dealer.

Neither the Company nor the Bank anticipates that compliance with environmental laws and regulations will have any material
effect on capital expenditures, earnings, or on its competitive position. The Bank is not dependent on a single customer or afew
customers, the loss of whom would have a material effect on the business of the Bank.

The Bank employed approximately 149 persons as of December 31, 2004. The Company does not have any employees. The
principal officers of the Bank also serve as officers of the Company.

B. Regulation and Supervision

The Company is also subject to the provisions of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHCA”) and to
supervision and examination by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “FRB”). The Bank is subject to the
supervision and examination by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”), as its primary federal regulator and as
the insurer of the Bank’s deposits. The Bank is also regulated and examined by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking (the
“Department”).

The insurance activities of The M Group are subject to regulation by the insurance departments of the various states in which
The M Group conducts business including principally the Pennsylvania Department of Insurance. The securities brokerage
activities of The M Group are subject to regulation by federal and state securities commissions.

The FRB has issued regulations under the BHCA that require a bank holding company to serve as a source of financia and
managerial strength to its subsidiary banks. Asaresult, the FRB, pursuant to such regulations, may require the Company to stand
ready to use its resources to provide adequate capital funds to the Bank during periods of financia stress or adversity. The BHCA
requires the Company to secure the prior approval of the FRB beforeit can acquire all or substantially all of the assets of any bank,
or acquire ownership or control of 5% or more of any voting shares of any bank. Such atransaction would also require approval
of the Department.

A bank holding company is prohibited under the BHCA from engaging in, or acquiring direct or indirect control of, more than
5% of the voting shares of any company engaged in non-banking activities unless the FRB, by order or regulation, has found such
activities to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. Under the BHCA,
the FRB has the authority to require a bank holding company to terminate any activity or relinquish control of a non-bank
subsidiary (other than a non-bank subsidiary of a bank) upon the FRB'’s determination that such activity or control constitutes a
serious risk to the financial soundness and stability of any bank subsidiary of the bank holding company.

Bank holding companies are required to comply with the FRB’s risk-based capital guidelines. The risk-based capita rules are
designed to make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banks and bank holding
companies and to minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets. Currently, the required minimum ratio of total capital to risk-
weighted assets (including certain off-balance sheet activities, such as standby letters of credit) is 8%. At least half of the total
capital is required to be Tier 1 capital, consisting principally of common shareholders’ equity, less certain intangible assets. The
remainder (“Tier 2 capital”) may consist of certain preferred stock, a limited amount of subordinated debt, certain hybrid capital
instruments and other debt securities, 45% of net unrealized gains on marketable equity securities and a limited amount of the
general loan loss allowance. The risk-based capital guidelines are required to take adequate account of interest rate risk,
concentration of credit risk, and risks of nontraditional activities.

In addition to the risk-based capital guidelines, the FRB requires each bank holding company to comply with the leverage ratio,
under which the bank holding company must maintain a minimum level of Tier 1 capital to average total consolidated assets of
3% for those bank holding companies which have the highest regulatory examination ratings and are not contemplating or
experiencing significant growth or expansion. All other bank holding companies are expected to maintain a leverage ratio of at
least 4% to 5%. The Bank is subject to similar capital requirements adopted by the FDIC.

C. Regulation of the Bank

From time to time, various types of federal and state legislation have been proposed that could result in additional regulation of,
and restrictions of, the business of the Bank. It cannot be predicted whether any such legislation will be adopted or how such
legislation would affect the business of the Bank. As a consequence of the extensive regulation of commercial banking activities
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in the United States, the Bank’s businessis particularly susceptible to being affected by federal legislation and regulations that may
increase the costs of doing business.

Prompt Corrective Action - The FDIC has specified the levels at which an insured institution will be considered “well-
capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” and “critically undercapitalized.” In the event an institution’s capital
deteriorates to the “undercapitalized” category or below, the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (the “FDIA”) and FDIC regulations
prescribe an increasing amount of regulatory intervention, including: (1) the institution of a capital restoration plan by a bank and
aguarantee of the plan by a parent institution; and (2) the placement of a hold on increases in assets, number of branches or lines
of business. If capital has reached the significantly or critically undercapitalized levels, further materia restrictions can be
imposed, including restrictions on interest payable on accounts, dismissal of management and (in critically undercapitalized
situations) appointment of a receiver. For well-capitalized institutions, the FDIA provides authority for regulatory intervention
where the institution is deemed to be engaging in unsafe or unsound practices or receives a less than satisfactory examination
report rating for asset quality, management, earnings or liquidity.

Deposit Insurance - There are two deposit insurance funds administered by the FDIC - the Savings Association Insurance Fund
(“SAIF") and the Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF"). The Bank’s deposits are insured under the BIF; however, the deposits assumed
by the Bank in connection with the merger of Lock Haven Savings Bank are treated and assessed as SAIF-insured deposits. The
FDIC has implemented a risk-related premium schedule for all insured depository institutions that results in the assessment of
premiums based on capital and supervisory measure. Under the risk-related premium schedule, the FDIC assigns, on a semiannual
basis, each institution to one of three capital groups (well-capitalized, adequately capitalized or undercapitalized) and further
assigns such institution to one of three subgroups within a capital group. The institution’s subgroup assignment is based upon the
FDIC'sjudgment of the institution’s strength in light of supervisory evaluations, including examination reports, statistical analyses
and other information relevant to gauging the risk posed by the institution. Only institutions with a total capital to risk-adjusted
assets ratio of 10.0% or greater, aTier 1 capital to risk-adjusted assets ratio of 6.0% or greater and a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 5.0%
or greater, are assigned to the well-capitalized group. As of December 31, 2004, the Bank’s ratios were well above required
minimum ratios.

Both the BIF and SAIF are presently fully funded at more than the minimum amount required by law. Accordingly, the BIF and
SAIF assessment rates range from zero for those institutions with the least risk, to $0.27 for every $100 of insured deposits for
ingtitutions deemed to have the highest risk. The Bank is in the category of institutions that presently pay nothing for deposit
insurance. The FDIC adjusts the rates every six months. The FDIC indicated that all banks may again be required to pay deposit
insurance premiums in the future if the current trend of the size of the deposit insurance funds relative to all insured deposits
continues.

While the Bank presently pays no premiums for deposit insurance, it is subject to assessments to pay the interest on Financing
Corporation (“FICQO") bonds. FICO was created by Congress to issue bonds to finance the resolution of failed thrift institutions.
The current annual FICO assessment for the Bank (and all banks) is $.0144 per $100 of BIF deposits.

Other Legidlation

The Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act (“FACT”) was signed into law on December 4, 2003. This law extends the
previously existing Fair Credit Reporting Act. New provisions added by FACT address the growing problem of identity theft.
Consumers will be able to initiate a fraud alert when they are victims of identity theft, and credit reporting agencies will have
additional duties. Consumerswill also be entitled to obtain free credit reports, and will be granted certain additional privacy rights.
Regulators will be issuing rulesto implement FACT over the next year, and some of these ruleswill likely impose additional duties
on the Bank, although the Company does not believe that the application of these new rules will have a materia effect on its
operations.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 was enacted to enhance penalties for accounting and auditing improprieties at publicly traded
companies and to protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of corporate disclosures under the federal securities
laws. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act generally appliesto al companies, including the Company, that file or are required to file periodic
reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act. The
legislation includes provisions, among other things, governing the services that can be provided by a public company’s
independent auditors and the procedures for approving such services, requiring the chief executive officer and principal accounting
officer to certify certain matters relating to the company’s periodic filings under the Exchange Act, requiring expedited filings of
reports by insiders of their securities transactions and containing other provisions relating to insider conflicts of interest, increasing
disclosure requirements relating to critical financial accounting policies and their application, increasing penalties for securities
law violations, and creating a new public accounting oversight board, a regulatory body subject to SEC jurisdiction with broad
powers to set auditing, quality control and ethics standards for accounting firms. In response to the legislation, the national
securities exchanges and NASDAQ have adopted new rules relating to certain matters, including the independence of members
of acompany’s audit committee as a condition to listing or continued listing. The Company does not believe that the application
of these new rules to the Company will have a materia effect on its results of operations.

In addition, Congress is often considering some financial industry legislation. The Company cannot predict how any new
legislation, or new rules adopted by the federal banking agencies, may affect its business in the future.

In addition to federal banking law, the Bank is subject to the Pennsylvania Banking Code. The Banking Code was amended in
late 2000 to provide more complete “parity” in the powers of state-chartered institutions compared to national banks and federal
savings banks doing business in Pennsylvania. Pennsylvania banks have the same ability to form financial subsidiaries authorized
by the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, as do national banks.
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Environmental Laws

Environmentally related hazards have become a source of high risk and potential liability for financia institutions relating to
their loans. Environmentally contaminated properties owned by an institution’s borrowers may result in adrastic reduction in the
value of the collateral securing the institution’s loans to such borrowers, high environmental clean up costs to the borrower
affecting its ability to repay the loans, the subordination of any lien in favor of the institution to a state or federal lien securing
clean up costs, and liability to the institution for clean up costsiif it forecloses on the contaminated property or becomes involved
in the management of the borrower. The Company is not aware of any borrower who is currently subject to any environmental
investigation or clean up proceeding which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of
operations of the Company.

Effect of Government Monetary Policies

The earnings of the Company are and will be affected by domestic economic conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of
the United States Government and its agencies. The monetary policies of the FRB have had, and will likely continue to have, an
important impact on the operating results of commercia banks through its power to implement national monetary policy in order,
among other things, to curb inflation or combat arecession. The FRB has amajor effect upon the levels of bank loans, investments
and deposits through its open market operations in the United States Government securities and through its regulation of, among
other things, the discount rate on borrowing of member banks and the reserve requirements against member bank deposits. Itis
not possible to predict the nature and impact of future changes in monetary and fiscal policies.

DESCRIPTION OF BANK
a. History and Business

Jersey Shore State Bank (“Bank”) was incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as a state bank in
1934 and became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company on July 12, 1983.

As of December 31, 2004, the Bank had total assets of $530,736,000; total shareholders’ equity of $56,743,000 and total deposits
of $357,479,000. The Bank’s deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation for the maximum amount
provided under current law.

The Bank engages in business as a commercia bank, doing business at several locations in Lycoming, Clinton and Centre
Counties, Pennsylvania. The Bank offers insurance and securities brokerage services through its wholly owned subsidiary, The M
Group, Inc. D/B/A The Comprehensive Financial Group.

Services offered by the Bank include accepting time, demand and savings deposits including Super NOW accounts, regular
savings accounts, money market accounts, investment certificates, fixed rate certificates of deposit and club accounts. Its services
aso include making secured and unsecured commercial and consumer loans, financing commercial transactions, making
construction and mortgage |oans and the renting of safe deposit facilities. Additional servicesinclude making residential mortgage
loans, revolving credit loans with overdraft protection, small business |oans, etc. Business |oans include seasonal credit collateral
|oans and term loans.

The Bank’s loan portfolio mix can be classified into four principal categories of real estate, agricultural, commercia and
consumer. Real estate loans can be further segmented into construction and land development, farmland, one-to-four family
residential, multi-family and commercial or industrial. Qualified borrowers are defined by policy or by industry underwriting
standards. Owner provided equity requirements range from 20% to 30% with a first lien status required. Terms are restricted to
between 10 and 20 years with the exception of construction and land development, which is limited to one to five years.
Appraisals, verifications and visitations comply with industry standards.

Financial information that is required on al commercial mortgages includes the most current three years balance sheets and
income statements and projections on income to be developed through the project. In the case of corporations and partnerships,
the principals are often asked to indebt themselves personally as well. Residential mortgages, repayment ability is determined
from information contained in the application and recent income tax returns. Emphasis is on credit, employment, income and
residency verification. Broad hazard insurance is always required and flood insurance where applicable. In the case of
construction mortgages, builders risk insurance is requested.

Agricultural loans for the purchase or improvement of real estate must meet the Bank’s real estate underwriting criteria. The
only permissible exception is when a Farmers Home Loan Administration guaranty is obtained. Agricultural loans made for the
purchase of equipment are usually payable in five years, but never more than seven, depending upon the useful life of the
purchased asset. Minimum borrower equity ranges from 20% to 30%. Livestock financing criteria depends upon the nature of the
operation. A dairy herd could be financed over three years, but a feeder operation would require cleanup in intervals of less than
oneyear. Agricultural loans are a'so made for crop production purposes. Such loans are structured to repay within the production
cycle and not carried over into a subsequent year. General purpose working capital loans are also a possibility with repayment
expected within one year. Itisalso agenera policy to collateralize non-real estate loans with not only the asset purchased but also
junior liens on all other available assets. Insurance and credit criteria is the same as mentioned previously. In addition, annual
visitsare made to our agricultural customersto determine the general condition of assets. Personal credit requirements are handled
as consumer loans. Commercial loans are made for the acquisition and improvement of real estate, purchase of equipment and for
working capital purposes on a seasonal or revolving basis. Criteria was discussed under real estate financing for such loans, but
it is important to note that such loans may be made in conjunction with the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority.
Caution is also exercised in taking industrial property for collateral by requiring, on a selective basis, environmental audits.

Equipment loans are generally amortized over three to seven years, with an owner equity contribution required of at least 20%
of the purchase price. Unusually expensive pieces may be financed for alonger period depending upon the asset’s useful life. The
increased cash flow resulting from the additional piece, through improved income or greater depreciation expense, serves in
establishing the terms. Insurance coverage with the Bank as loss payee is required, especialy in the case where the equipment is
rolling stock.

Seasonal and revolving lines of credit are offered for working capital purposes. Collateral for such aloan includes the pledge
of inventory and/or receivables. Drawing availability is usually 50% of inventory and 75% of eligible receivables. Eligible
receivables are defined as invoices less than 90 days delinquent. Exclusive reliance is very seldom placed on such collateral,
therefore, other lienable assets are also taken into the collateral pool. Where reliance is placed on inventory and accounts
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receivable, the applicant must provide financia information including agings on a monthly basis. In addition, the guaranty of the
principalsis usually obtained.

It is unusua for the Bank to make unsecured commercial loans. But when such aloan is a necessity, credit information in the
file must support that decision.

Letter of Credit availability islimited to standbys where the customer is well known to the Bank. Credit criteriais the same as
that utilized in making adirect loan and collateral is obtained in most cases, and whenever the expiration date is for more than one
year.  Consumer loan products include second mortgages, automobile financing, small loan requests, overdraft check lines and
PHEAA referral loans. Our policy includes standards used in the industry on debt service ratios and terms are consistent with
prudent underwriting standards and the use of proceeds. Verifications are made of employment and residency, along with credit
history. Second mortgages are confined to equity borrowing and home improvements. Terms are generally ten years or less and
rates are fixed. Loan to collateral value criteria is 80% or less and verifications are made to determine values. Automobile
financing is generally restricted to five years and done on adirect basis. The Bank, as a practice, does not floor plan and therefore
does not discount dealer paper. Small loan requests are to accommodate personal needs such as the purchase of small appliances
or for the payment of taxes. Overdraft check lines are limited to $5,000 or less.

The Bank’s investment portfolio is analyzed and priced on a monthly basis. Investments are made in U.S. Treasuries, U.S.
Government Agency issues, bank qualified municipal bonds, corporate bonds and corporate stocks which consist of Pennsylvania
bank stocks. Bonds with BAA or better ratings are used, unless a local issue is purchased that has a lesser or no rating. Factors
taken into consideration when investments are made include liquidity, the Company’s tax position and the policies of the
Asset/Liability Committee.

Although the Bank has regular opportunities to bid on pools of funds of $100,000 or more in the hands of municipalities,
hospitals and others, it does not rely on these monies to fund loans on intermediate or longer-term investments. Minor seasonal
growth in deposits is experienced at or near the year-end.

It is the policy of the Bank to generally maintain a rate sensitive asset (RSA) to rate sensitive liability (RSL) ratio of 150% of

equity for a 6-month time horizon, 150% of equity for a 2-year time horizon and 150% of equity for a 5-year time horizon.
The Bank operates eleven full service offices in Lycoming, Clinton, and Centre Counties, Pennsylvania, and a Mortgage/L oan
Center in Centre County, Pennsylvania. The economic base of the region is developed around service, light manufacturing
industries and agriculture. The banking environment in Lycoming, Clinton and Centre Counties, Pennsylvania is highly
competitive. The Bank competes for loans and deposits with commercial banks, savings and loan associations and other financial
ingtitutions. The Bank has arelatively stable deposit base and no material amount of deposits is obtained from a single depositor
or group of depositors (including federal, state and local governments). The Bank has not experienced any significant seasonal
fluctuations in the amount of its deposits.

b. Supervision and Regulation

The earnings of the Bank are affected by the policies of regulatory authorities including the FDIC and the FRB. An important
function of the FRB isto regulate the money supply and interest rates. Among the instruments used to implement these objectives
are open market operations in U.S. Government Securities, changes in reserve requirements against member bank deposits and
limitations on interest rates that member banks may pay on time and savings deposits. These instruments are used in varying
combinations to influence overall growth and distribution of bank loans, investments on deposits, and their use may also affect
interest rates charged on loans or paid for deposits.

The policies and regulations of the FRB have had and will probably continue to have a significant effect on the Bank’s deposits,
|loans and investment growth, as well as the rate of interest earned and paid, and are expected to affect the Bank’s operation in the
future. The effect of such policies and regulations upon the future business and earnings of the Bank cannot accurately be
predicted.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT:

NAME AGE FIVE-YEAR ANALYSISOF DUTIES
Ronald A. Walko 58 President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company; the Bank;
The M Group; and Woods Investment Company, Inc.;
President of Woods Real Estate Development Co, Inc.; and Federal
Bank examiner prior to 1986 for an eighteen-year period.
Hubert A. Vaencik 63 Senior Vice President of the Company; Senior Vice President and

Operations Officer of the Bank; Assistant Secretary of Woods Investment

Company, Inc.Vice President of Woods Real Estate Development Co, Inc.;
Vice President - Operations of The M Group; Vice President with another

bank prior to 1985 for a fourteen-year period.

ITEM 2 PROPERTIES
The Company owns and leases its properties. Listed herewith are the locations of properties owned or leased, in which the banking
offices and Financial Center are located; all properties are in good condition and adequate for the Bank’s purposes:

Office Address

Main 115 South Main Street Owned
P.O. Box 5098
Jersey Shore, Pennsylvania 17740

Bridge Street 112 Bridge Strest Owned
Jersey Shore, Pennsylvania 17740

DuBoistown 2675 Euclid Avenue Owned
DuBoistown, Pennsylvania 17702

Williamsport 300 Market Street Owned
P.O. Box 967
Williamsport, Pennsylvania 17703-0967

Montgomery 9094 Rt 405 Highway Under Lease
Montgomery, Pennsylvania 17752

Lock Haven 4 West Main Street Owned
Lock Haven, Pennsylvania 17745

Mill Hall (Inside Wal-Mart), 167 Hogan Boulevard Under Lease
Mill Hall, Pennsylvania 17751

Spring Mills Ross Hill Road, P.O. Box 66 Owned
Spring Mills, Pennsylvania 16875

Centre Hall 2842 Earlystown Road Land Under Lease
Centre Hall, Pennsylvania 16828

Zion 100 Cobblestone Road Under Lease
Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823

Jersey Shore State Bank

Financial Center 1952 Weaddle Road, Suite 106 Under Lease

State College State College, Pennsylvania 16803

The M Group, Inc.

D/B/A The Comprehensive 705 Washington Boulevard Under Lease

Financial Group Williamsport, Pennsylvania 17701

State College (Inside Wal-Mart), 1665 North Atherton Place Under Lease
State College, Pennsylvania 16803

State College 2050 North Atherton Street Land Under Lease

State College, Pennsylvania 16803

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the normal course of business, various lawsuits and claims arise against the Company and its subsidiary. There are no such
legal proceedings or claims currently pending or threatened.

ITEM 4 SUBMISSION OF MATTERSTO AVOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004.
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PART 11

ITEM 5 MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'SCOMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASE OF EQUITY SECURITIES
The Common Stock islisted on The NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “PWOD”. The following table sets forth (1)
the quarterly high and low bid information for a share of the Company’s Common Stock during the periods indicated, and (2)
quarterly dividends on a share of the Common Stock with respect to each quarter since January 1, 2003. The following quotations
reflect inter-dealer prices and do not include retail markup, markdown or commission. They may not necessarily represent actual
transactions.

Dividends
High Low Declared

2003: o

FIrst QUarter. . ...t $ 41.27 $ 32.86 $ 0.27

Second QUAIET. . . oot 47.43 37.71 0.27

Third QUarter . ... ... e 42,32 38.64 0.27

Fourth Quarter . ... ... i 47.91 40.85 0.68
2004:

First Quarter. .. ... $ 48.39 $ 43.10 $ 0.35

Second QUaEr. . ..ot 46.91 42.47 0.35

Third Quarter . ... 50.75 44.16 0.35

Fourth Quarter . ... ... e 50.12 45.26 0.71

The Bank has paid cash dividends since 1941. The Company has paid dividends since the effective date of its formation as a
bank holding company. It is the present intention of the Company Board of Directors to continue the dividend payment policy;
however, further dividends must necessarily depend upon earnings, financial condition, appropriate legal restrictions and other
factors relevant at the time the Board of Directors of the Company considers dividend policy. Cash available for dividend
distributions to shareholders of the Company must initially come from dividends paid by the Bank to the Company. Therefore,
the restrictions on the Bank’s dividend payments are directly applicable to the Company.

Under the Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law of 1988, a corporation may not pay a dividend, if after giving effect thereto,
the corporation would be unable to pay its debts as they become due in the usual course of business and after giving effect thereto
the total assets of the corporation would be less than the sum of its total liabilities plus the amount that would be needed, if the
corporation were to be dissolved at the time of the distribution, to satisfy the preferential rights upon dissol ution of the shareholders
whose preferential rights are superior to those receiving the dividend.

As of March 7, 2005, the Company had approximately 1,234 shareholders of record.
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following table sets forth certain financial data as of and for each of the yearsin the five-year period ended December 31, 2004.

As of and for the Years Ended December 31,

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Consolidated Statement of

Income Data:
Interestincome ................... 30,947 $ 29,232 $ 29,302 $ 28,736 $ 28,454
Interestexpense. .................. 8,768 9,265 10,846 12,481 12,778
Net interestincome................ 22,179 19,967 18,456 16,255 15,676
Provision for loanlosses............ 465 255 365 372 286
Net interest income after provision

forloanlosses................. 21,714 19,712 18,091 15,883 15,390
Non-interest income ............... 7,949 8,454 5,255 5,109 2,615
Non-interest expense. . ............. 14,317 13,289 12,213 11,272 9,820
Income before incometaxes......... 15,346 14,877 11,133 9,720 8,185
Applicableincometaxes............ 4,263 3,703 2,247 1,978 1,619
Netincome....................... 11,083 $ 11,174 $ 8,886 $ 7,742 $ 6,566
Consolidated Balance Sheet at

End of Period:
Total @ssets. . ... ovv v 546,703 $ 527,381 $ 472,206 $ 424810 $ 394,913
Loans. ......ccovviiiiiii . 324,505 275,828 257,845 251,623 244,798
Allowance for loanlosses........... (3,338) (3,069) (2,953) (2,927) (2,879)
DepositS. .. ..o 356,836 334,318 339,848 305,150 278,134
Long-term debt — other ............ 75,878 70,878 51,778 41,778 31,778
Shareholders equity ............... 73,165 69,769 63,142 55,252 50,514
Per Share Data:
Net income
Earnings per share- basic........... 333 $ 335 $ 266 $ 230 $ 191
Earnings per share - diluted. .. ....... 3.33 3.35 2.66 2.30 191
Cash dividendsdeclared ... ......... 1.76 1.49 1.24 111 1.00
Bookvalue....................... 22.03 21.00 18.94 16.53 14.83
Number of shares outstanding, at

endof period. . ................ 3,321,527 3,321,560 3,031,329 3,039,590 3,097,293
Average number of shares

outstandingbasic .............. 3,325,007 3,330,585 3,336,312 3,371,845 3,431,494
Selected financial ratios:

Return on average

shareholders equity . ......... 15.49% 16.60% 15.00% 14.38% 13.77%

Return on average total assets . . . . 2.06% 2.24% 2.01% 1.95% 1.74%
Net interest income to average

interest earning assets. . ......... 4.41% 4.28% 4.45% 4.39% 4.35%
Dividend payout ratio . ............. 52.72% 44.76% 46.40% 48.17% 52.18%
Average shareholders’ equity to

averagetotal assets. ............ 13.30% 13.51% 13.39% 13.54% 12.62%
Loans to deposits, at end of period. . .. 90.94% 82.50% 75.87% 82.46% 88.01%

Per share data and number of shares outstanding have been adjusted in each reporting period to give retroactive effect to a stock
split effected in the form of a 100% stock dividend issued January 15, 1998, a 10% stock dividend issued June 9, 1999 and a 10%

stock dividend issued November 13, 2003.

ITEM 7

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

The “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Consolidated Financial Condition and Results of Operation” in the Annual
Report are incorporated in their entirety by reference under this Item 7.



ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURESABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk for the Company is comprised primarily from interest rate risk exposure and liquidity risk. Interest rate risk and
liquidity risk management is performed at the Bank level as well asthe Company level. The Company’sinterest rate sensitivity
is monitored by management through selected interest rate risk measures produced internally. Additional information and details
are provided in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Consolidated Financial Condition” and Results of Operations
“Liquidity, Interest Rates Sensitivity and Market Risk-Interst Rate Sensitivity” at the Annual Report.

Generally, management believes the Company iswell positioned to respond expeditiously when the market interest rate outlook
changes.

ITEM 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto contained in the Annual Report are incorporated in their
entirety by reference under this Item 8.

ITEM 9 CHANGESIN AND DISAGREEMENTSWITH ACCOUNTANTSON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A CONTROLSAND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer,
has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(€)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), as of December 31, 2004. Based on this
evaluation, the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financia officer concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of December 31, 2004. There have been no material changes in the Company’sinternal control over
financia reporting during the fourth quarter of 2004 that has materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’sinternal control over financia reporting.

As permitted by an applicable SEC order, management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting, required by
Item 308(a) of Regulations S-K, and the related attestation report of the independent registered accounting firm, required by Item
308(b) of Regulation S-K, will be filed by amendment to this form 10-K within the required filing period.

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART 111
ITEM 10 DIRECTORSAND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information appearing in the Proxy Statement under the captions “The Board of Directors and Its Committees,” “Election of
Directors,” “ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management,” and “Principal Officers of the Corporation” are
incorporated herein by reference. A copy of the Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct for the Company can be requested from Brian
Knepp, Vice President of Finance, at 300 Market Street, Williamsport, PA 17701. A link with access to the Company’s SEC 10-
K filings, annual reports, and quarterly filings can be found at www.jssb.com.

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information appearing under the captions “Compensation of Directors,” “Executive Compensation,” “Options/SAR Grants,”
“Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises in Last Fiscal Year” and “FY-End Option/SAR Values,” and “Executive Employment and
Severance Agreements,” in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information appearing under the caption “ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Proxy
Statement isincorporated herein by reference.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of
securities remaining

Number of available for future
securities to be Weighted- issuance under

issued upon average equity compensation

exercise of exercised of plans [excluding

outstanding options,

outstanding options,

securities reflected in

warrants and rights warrants and rights column (@)]
Plan Category @ (9
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 15,695 $ 40.24 —
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security holders — — —
Total 15,695 $ 40.24 —
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ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPSAND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

There have been no materia transactions between the Company and the Bank, nor any material transactions proposed, with any
Director or Executive Officer of the Company and the Bank, or any associate of the foregoing persons. The Company and the
Bank have had, and intend to continue to have, banking and financial transactionsin the ordinary course of business with Directors
and Officers of the Company and the Bank and their associates on comparable terms and with similar interest rates as those
prevailing from time to time for other customers of the Company and the Bank.

Total loans outstanding from the Bank at December 31, 2004 to the Company’s and the Bank’s Officers and Directors as a group
and members of their immediate families and companiesin which they had an ownership interest of 10% or more was $11,674,000
or approximately 15.96% of the total equity capital of the Company. Loans to such persons were made in the ordinary course of
business, were made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with other persons, and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other
unfavorable features. See also the information appearing in footnote 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included
elsewhere in the Annual Report.

ITEM 14  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEESAND SERVICES

The information appearing in the Proxy Statement under the captions, “Audit Fees,” “Audit-Related Fees,” “Tax Fees,” “All
Other Fees,” and “Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures’ (at page 8) is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULESAND REPORTS ON
FORM 8-K

(8 Financia Statements

1. Thefollowing consolidated financial statements and reports are set forth in Item 8:
Report of Independent Auditors
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Statement of Income
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Thefollowing schedules is submitted herewith:

I. Indebtedness of Related Parties

The schedules not included are omitted because the required matter or conditions are not present, the datais insignificant or the
required information is submitted as part of the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K
None
(c) Exhibits:
(3) (i) Articlesof Incorporation of the Registrant, as presently in effect (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, No. 333-65821).
(3) (i) Bylaws of the Registrant as presently in effect (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrant’s

Registration Statement on Form S-4, No. 333-65821).

(10) (i) Employment Agreement, dated August, 1991, between Jersey Shore State Bank and Ronald A. Walko
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on form S-4, No. 333-
65821).*

(10) (ii) Employment Agreement, dated November 5, 1984, between Jersey Shore State Bank and Hubert A. Valencik
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit (10)(iii) of the Registrant’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2000).*

(10) (iii) Employee Severance Benefit Plan, dated May 30, 1996, for Ronald A. Walko (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on form S-4, No. 333-65821).*

(10) (iv) Employee Severance Benefit Plan, dated May 30, 1996, for Hubert A. Vaencik (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit (10)(v) of the Registrant’s Annua Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2000).*

(10) (v) Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on form S-4, No. 333-65821).*

(10) (vi) Amendment and Restatement of the Jersey Shore State Bank Director Deferred Fee Agreement, dated
October 29, 2004, between Jersey Shore State Bank and Philip H. Bower.*

(10) (vii) Amendment and Restatement of the Jersey Shore State Bank Director Deferred Fee Agreement, dated
October 29, 2004, between Jersey Shore State Bank and Lynn S. Bowes.*

(10) (viii) Amendment and Restatement of the Jersey Shore State Bank Director Deferred Fee Agreement, dated
October 29, 2004, between Jersey Shore State Bank and Michael J. Casale.*

(10) (ix) Amendment and Restatement of the Jersey Shore State Bank Director Deferred Fee Agreement, dated
October 29, 2004, between Jersey Shore State Bank and James M. Furey |1.*

(10) (x) Amendment and Restatement of the Jersey Shore State Bank Director Deferred Fee Agreement, dated
October 29, 2004, between Jersey Shore State Bank and Jay H. McCormick.*

(10) (xi) Amendment and Restatement of the Jersey Shore State Bank Director Deferred Fee Agreement, dated
October 29, 2004, between Jersey Shore State Bank and William H. Rockey.*

(10) (xii) Amendment and Restatement of the Jersey Shore State Bank Director Deferred Fee Agreement, dated
October 29, 2004, between Jersey Shore State Bank and Ronald A. Walko.*
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(21) Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
(23) Consent of Independent Certified Public Accountants.
31 (i) Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer
31 (ii) Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) Certification of Principle Accounting Officer
32 (i) Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer
32 (ii) Section 1350 Certification of Principle Accounting Officer

* Denotes compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

March 8, 2005 PENNS WOODS BANCORP, INC.

BY: RONALD A. WALKO, President & Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Ronald A. Walko, President & Chief Executive March 8, 2005
Officer and Director

m»ot///
Bfian L. Kn
and Accounti

/g%ﬂ

ncipal Financial March 8, 2005
ficer

Phillip H. Bower, Dir March 8, 2005
Lynn S. Bowes, Director March 8, 2005
Michael J. Casale, Jr., Director March 8, 2005

March 8, 2005

March 8, 2005
Jay H. McCormick, Director March 8, 2005
R. Edward Nesflerode, Jr., Director March 8, 2005

(ebtoerSpatt §
James E.Pl / ‘Director March 8, 2005

W|II|am H. Rockey, Sr. Vice President & March 8, 2005

i, J%
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Management & Board of Directors
(Penns Wbods Bancorp, Inc. & Jersey Shore Sate Bank)

Officers

RonadA.Walko........... ... President & Chief Executive Officer of
Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. & Jersey Shore State Bank

Hubert A.Vaencik . ............ ...t Senior Vice President of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.,

Senior Vice President & Chief Operations Officer of Jersey Shore State Bank
William H. Rockey . .. Senior Vice President of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. & Jersey Shore State Bank

ANNM.RIleS . ... ... Senior Vice President & Chief Credit Officer
Paul R.Mamolen............................ Chief Operating Officer & Senior Vice President of
The Comprehensive Financia Group
Robert J. Glunk. .. .............. Vice President of Branch Administration & Business Development
StephenM. Tasselli . ........ ... il Senior Vice President & Commercia Loan Manager
G.DavidGundy .................. Senior Vice President and Customer Sales and Service Manager
William P YOUNQ, Jr. ..o EDP Systems Officer
Leon T. KOSKI® . . ..ot Vice President & Loan Officer
GeraldJ. Seman. . ... Vice President & Mortgage Officer
Brian S. BOWSEr . ...t Vice President — Commercia Lender
LesieK. Benshoff . ... ... i Cashier & Assistant Vice President
JOhNR.Frey. ... Vice President & Chief Compliance Officer
CraigRussell . ... ... Vice President & Branch Manager
David R. PalSKi . .o v v Vice President & Branch Manager
Marilyn R. Neyhart ............... Assistant Secretary & Vice President Loan Operations/Collateral
Larry G. Garverick. . ... Vice President & Loan Origination and Review
C.JacquelineGottshall . . ....... ... o Assistant Cashier & Branch Manager
Theodore J. SZUNG) . . . ... Collections Manager
WilliamV. Mauck. . ........ ..o Vice President & Computer Operations/I T
Michael AL MUSIO . ... Vice President & Commercia Lender
Brian L. Knepp. . . ..o Vice President of Finance, Assistant Secretary
Beverly S Rupert ... Assistant Vice President & Branch Manager
JOANMN M. DiPasguale . . . ... Personnel Officer
Tammy L.Dole. ... Assistant Vice President & Branch Manager
Mary L. Baier .......coiiiii i Assistant Branch Manager & IRA Coordinator
Christopher J. Dunlap. . . ... Assistant in Collections
Judith AL SMith . .. Assistant Secretary
Margery K. RemiCK . ... ... Assistant Secretary
DorisM. Fogleman . .......oouii e Assistant Bookkeeping Manager
Mary E. Falls . ..o Assistant Branch Manager
CynthiaA. Flanagan . ... Branch Manager
Lori AL SIHMPIE . . Marketing Manager
Bonnie H. RIipKa . . ..o Branch Manager
Peter J. Nastase ll. . ... Assistant Branch Manager
DianaM. Blazina. . ......ouui Assistant Branch Manager
Kristen S McCauley . ... Assistant Branch Manager
Janine E. PaCKer . . ... o Controller
Rebeccal. Frank. . ... Assistant Branch Manager
Mark A, Beatty . . . ..o IT Officer
Aaron J. CUNNINGNaM . . . oo e e et e e e e Credit Analyst
PatriciaW. WOOANNg. . . ..ottt e Loan Officer
Registered Representatives For The Comprehensive Financial Group
DebraR. Martin, CMFC ... ... .. . Lock Haven Branch
Sonyal. Barclay. . ... Williamsport Branch
Directors
PhillipH. Bower. . ... Owner, Central Equipment Company
LYNN S BOWES . . ..ottt et e e e e e Farmer
Michael J. Casale, Jr.. ..o Attorney, Casale & Bonner P.C.
H. ThomasDavis, Jr.. .. ..o Senior Vice President, Franklin Insurance Company
JamesM. Furey, Il......... ... .. ... ...... President & Owner, Eastern Wood Products Company
Jay H. McCormick . ......ooiiiiiii e President & Owner, JH.M. Enterprises, Inc.
R. Edward Nestlerode, Jr. . ..................... Vice President of Nestlerode Contracting Co., Inc.
JamesE. Plummer....................... Retired, Former President of Lock Haven Savings Bank;

Secretary, Jersey Shore State Bank

William H. Rockey. .. Senior Vice President of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. & Jersey Shore State Bank
Ronald A.Walko. .......................... President & Chief Executive Officer of Penns Woods
Bancorp, Inc. & Jersey Shore State Bank

Williamsport Area Advisory Directors

Robert H. Kauffeld . .. ... Architect
James T.WOIYNIeC . . ...t President, Wolyniec Construction, Inc.
Honorary Directors

TheodoreH. Reich ........... Chairman Emeritus Howard M. Thompson

Raymond D. Eck Allan W. Lugg

Joseph B. Gehret, Sr. William S. Frazier
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MAIN OFFICE
115 South Main Street, PO. Box 5098, Jersey Shore, PA 17740

Phone 570-398-2213
Daily 8:30 to 4:30

Friday 8:30 to 7:00

Wednesday 8:30 to 12:00
Saturday Drive-In Only 8:30 to 12:00
Drive-In Window open at 8:30 am.

BRIDGE STREET OFFICE
112 Bridge Street, Jersey Shore, PA 17740
Phone 570-398-4400
Daily 8:30 to 4:30
Friday 8:30 to 7:00
Wednesday & Saturday 8:30 to 12:00
Drive-In Window open at 8:30 am.

DUBOISTOWN OFFICE
2675 Euclid Avenue, Williamsport, PA 17702
Phone 570-326-3731
Monday & Tuesday 8:30 to 4:30
Thursday 8:30 to 5:00
Friday 8:30 to 7:00
Wednesday & Saturday 8:30 to 12:00
Drive-In Window open at 8:30 am.

WILLIAMSPORT OFFICE
300 Market Street, PO. Box 967, Williamsport, PA 17703-0967
Phone 570-322-1111 « Toll-Free within Pennsylvania 1-888-412-5772
Monday & Tuesday 8:30 to 4:30
Thursday 8:30 to 5:00
Friday 8:30 to 6:30
Wednesday & Saturday 8:30 to 12:00
Drive-In Window open at 8:30 am.

MONTGOMERY OFFICE
9094 Rt. 405 Highway, Montgomery, PA 17752

Phone 570-547-6642

Monday & Tuesday 8:30 to 4:30
Thursday 8:30 to 5:00

Friday 8:30 to 7:00
Wednesday & Saturday 8:30 to 12:00
Drive-In Window open at 8:30 am.

LOCK HAVEN OFFICE
4 \West Main Street, Lock Haven, PA 17745
Phone 570-748-7785
Daily 8:30 to 4:30
Friday 8:30 to 6:30
Wednesday & Saturday 8:30 to 12:00
Drive-In Window open at 8:30 am.

MILL HALL OFFICE
(Inside WAL-MART)
173 Hogan Boulevard, Mill Hall, PA 17751
Phone 570-748-8680
Monday thru Wednesday 9:00 to 6:00
Thursday & Friday 9:00 to 8:00
Saturday 9:00 to 4:00

SPRING MILLS OFFICE
3635 Penns Valley Road, Spring Mills, PA 16875
Phone 814-422-8836
Monday & Friday 9:00 to 6:00
Tuesday & Thursday 9:00 to 4:30
Wednesday & Saturday 9:00 to 12:00




CENTRE HALL OFFICE
2842 Earlystown Road, Centre Hall, PA 16828
Phone 814-364-1600
Monday & Friday 9:00 to 6:00
Tuesday & Thursday 9:00 to 4:30
Wednesday & Saturday 9:00 to 12:00

ZION OFFICE
100 Cobblestone Road, Bellefonte, PA 16823
Phone 814-383-2700
Monday & Friday 9:00 to 6:00
Tuesday & Thursday 9:00 to 4:30
Wednesday & Saturday 9:00 to 12:00

JERSEY SHORE STATE BANK
FINANCIAL CENTER
1952 Waddle Road, Suite 106, State College, PA 16803
Phone 814-235-1710
Monday thru Friday 8:30 to 5:00
Brenda K. Thompson, Loan Coordinator

STATE COLLEGE OFFICE
(Inside WAL-MART)
1665 North Atherton Place, State College, PA 16803
Phone 814-272-4788
Monday thru Wednesday 9:00 to 6:00
Thursday & Friday 9:00 to 8:00
Saturday 9:00 to 4:00

THE M GROUP, INC.
D/B/A THE COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL GROUP
705 Washington Boulevard, Williamsport, PA 17701
Phone 570-322-4627

INTERNET BANKING
Www.jssh.com

TELEPHONE BANKING
Phone 570-320-2029 or 1-877-520-2265

Member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
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Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.
P.O. Box 967
300 Market Street
Williamsport, PA 17703-0967



